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tate may have it
Who were the recipients of that e-mail?
It would just be him.
And so it would be from Dr. Benton at UMMGC
5 e-mail address to Jerry Mitchell at The Clarion-Ledger?
A I mean, certainly the body would have that.
The actual e-mail address we've changed. But whatever
the official e-mail address system is. [ think it was
Peds UMC.edu or something to that effect. it's changed
since then. | know there's a statute that has some
archiving of those, but | wouldn't even know how to do
that.
Q  Well, I'lf talk to the lawyers about that.
They probably know.
MR. JICKA: In fact, let me go ahead and make a
request that y'all preserve any of the e-mails —
BY MR. JICKA:
Q Was it just one e-mail or was it a series?
A ldon'trecall. This was a long time ago, and
like | said, | didn't get officially involved.

MR. JICKA: All right. Well, I'll just make a
formal request that any e-mails regarding Jeffrey
Havard's case from Dr. Benton be preserved and
produced to us.

3 A
Q

[12

Q | was a little unclear about the funding part
of this. You said that Ms. Hocker wanted to see if we
could get some funding. What did you mean by that? Or
make some money. | don't mean to put words in your
mouth, but what were you saying there?
A So not all this was known to me when | was
being recruited and hired, but the program was a creation
by the legislature. The predicate for creating it was in
response to a federal lawsuit which the State had lost,
Barbour versus Olivia Y., and one of the mandates from
the federal monitor or whatever was that they create and
update the forensic sciences in the State of Mississippi.
Apparently, there were some erroneous decisions that had
been made not on the best of forensic science.
And in consequence, they established this.

The moneys used to establish the program were from the
Enron settiement -- or no, I'm sorry, WorldCom, my
apologies, WorldCom settlement, and part of it was set
aside. It was my understanding in recruitment that there
was enough moneys for ten years worth of funding, but
then after | was here it was maybe a couple years worth
of lundir‘q So it became quite npparent once | moved
here that there h,ad to Mmrm ﬂmding sgurces to be
penttfwd and that's what | meant. So Ms. Hm*er was
-ms.ﬁnmw agent reppénsuale for the fundmg of the

et o

Page 18 |

“Page20|

~ Pages 18..21
o
i 1 BY MR. JICKA: o
2 Q Did Jerry Mitchell ever use any quotes or
| 3 anything, any work that you presented to him in any
4 articles that you are aware of?
A No.
Q Did you ever speak with Jerry Mm;he‘ﬂ on the
phone about your thoughts about the Jeffrey Havard ease?
A Possibly. | don't have a. dlrsct.r‘ecan but
9 probably or possibly.
10 Q And the e-mail, if you could just give me the
| 11 substance of what you were saying to Jerry Mitchell as it
|12 related to the Jeffrey Havard case.
13 A Thatldid notfeel that an injustice had |
14 occurred, that there was a mischaracterization of the
[15 evidence that he had suggested that there was.
| 16 Q What was the mischaracterization of evidence?
(17 A I don't really recall, but | think that it's
18 very similar to what is being asserted now, that there's
19 some new science that has opened our minds that was
20 incorrectly applied in this particular case.
21 Q  And the science surrounding the shaken baby
| 22 syndrome and the issues -

® N O,

23 A Something — 14
24 @ -onthatdiagnosis? N e
25 A --tothat effect, yes, sir. <
s g & £
1 program. . :
2 If you know anything about UMC or t

3 universities, they're like an umbrella 501(c)(3), but
4 they're individual divisions that are autoné,mous i
5 mean, we have to run in the red. If we don‘t have the
6 money, then we lay off or we don't hgvedehs Somy
7 division immediately from when [ got here had to loak for
8 money, and certainly good works is one way of,adwert}stnq
9 that you deserve more money, | guess. And I'm pu;hngn
10 words in their mouth; but | believe that wasjhéiqxbntf
11 Q Let me show you Exhibit 2 Haveyeﬁ hada
12 chance to look at that, sir? P .\ ;
13 A lhave.
14  Q Does Exhibit2 mclude yog full repovmn me
15 Jeffrey Havard matter?
16 A ltdoes. ; .
17 Q Have you come up with anv addmbﬂlﬁ@qus_
18 since preparing this @;@'tftpat ﬂ"ﬂ"“m l?mhg}
112 repor}”ﬂ : . ; 87 ﬁ. 4

ir. M ;
ﬁ? . g‘ Bet:ﬂgs m gwm;nﬁmsw"sm the yo
22 oot e ot ey avmedn anying

?,- d

£ b “

23 ;mdmgna 1o your opinions?
| 24 That's wfw“ roviewod ﬁ"“ W@“'
' o, ik

. 25 mégq! l‘meonewfivi'ﬁ &
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Pages 22. 25

e B B i Ly R |
R | 1 Orleans, Memphis. Aqai ! ‘Lg-v?ﬁ |
|2 Q Would you say that you are up to date on the |2 aRl) t:on?;\hlsﬁ f\gmn, 'lhosg are detailed on the ¢
3 current controversy regarding shaken baby syndrome? I3 Q or Ber‘“z;‘;:f“ﬁissnssip_pl'at present.
| 4 A 1guess we'll find out, but relatively, yes. | 4 UMMC w;s there.s Ol'eiyou’had 4l "°§"‘°;“ o
| 5 Q Andtell me what you do to try to stay abreast 5 physician? omeone hat held that position, another
6 of new developments as it relates to specifically that 6 A No. | i
. It neve i i .
| 7 diagnosis. 7 it T existed previously, to my | :
8 A Sol'mamember of the Helfer Society. We 8 Q When ify in ¢ .
i ot " you testify in cases |i ;
9 maintain a listserv where we share complex cases and | 9 done - the two | gues:l You‘v: :’::’ fhe: one you've E
10 review major studies and discuss ongoing and future 110 are the victims or alleged victims of::m oy wssk & 57
11 research. I'm also a member of the section in the |11 A Always. I'm trying to think We wciél!lsa S |
12 American Academy of Pediatrics on child abuse and neglect | 12 occasionally do adult cases if the;«'re mentally impaired
13 known as the SCAN section, or it's the section on child | 18 but | don't believe I've ever been to court on any of :
14 abuse and neglect, SCAN, S-C-A-N. The same thing: they |14 those cases. So I'think to answer your question i
15 have a listserv, and we share information. That's a 15 carrectly, it's always been children under 18 |
16 little more on the general pediatric level, and the 16 il
17 Helfer Society are pathologists and neuropathologists, 17 ” i
18 neuroradiologists, radiologists, biomechanical engineers, 18 Q And tell me about your relationship with i
19 people that -- so that's one way. 19 Dr. Hayne. :
20 I'am afforded, at least up until this next 20 A | have met him over the years in cases where we p
21 budget year, three national conferences peryearof which |21 have intersection. He has come to my oﬁcg. He,
22 | choose conferences -- and they're detailed on my CV -- 22 unfortunately, of late has been the opposin'glexpm on L
23 that deal with this issue. Well, and other issues within 23 almost every one of my cases. N
24 the world of pediatric forensic medicine. | attend any 24 Q Earlier on did Dr. Hayne - make sure | N
25 and all local state conferences, predominantly New: 25 understand what you're saying, did you and Dr. Hayne wqt
IS o e e - bl ~ Page? I
1 both for the State in the cases that you worked on? 1 same side with Dr. Hayne, what kind of cases or where I
2 A | don't know. I believe when | came here 2 were those cases located? { ’
3 Dr. Hayne was having difficulties with the State. I'm 3 A Imean, all over the state of Mississippi. l‘ e A
4 not exactly sure when he separated from the State, but it 4 mean, they wgre - | think they were all.'Miissfssi'pp.p g i \
5 was really close to when | came here. So these were 5 oaseswl. because he w_as formerly the MIS‘S{SS.IPI.)I medical
6 actually cases that predated my coming here which were 6 examnhfeh;' | ?lor.ft t.)eheve there are any n,o;t llnslde the ‘
ing to court, which | had been asked to offer opinions 7 state of Mississippi. -
; g::;g o 8 Q@ Do youknow how much the contract s with SR
9 @ Sowhen you were in New Orieans, were you — 9 andw:rthi.nk; I rr';:y have asked you this - with 1heStats :
10 did you work for the State of Mississippi from time to :? o e A
11 time? L 5 e L
i t contract is on the jump drive you gave
12 A lworked for the State in terms of working for g us”Q Bbthg s o g } t
13 LSU. i ‘ g it
Pu B oy 114 A ltis. ) 1
14 Q State of Mississippi, I'm sorry. dd 16 @ Soaccording to what you've presented, the
IR wii e |16 consideration is Contractor shall be paid afes notto |
i issippi t much. | ) " " 4 ;
16 cases in Mississippi but no el when you were hired | 17 exceed $175 per hour, and you le.‘np sxcead $50,000.
17 Q Okay. So there were times wn g 18 Is that correct? Py hin=ol < 1k
" . NP I 7 N ;
18 by the State of Mississippi Attorney General's offic I A I mean, that's whatitsays. - ¥ s
19 before you came to UMC. Fod 20 Q And you brought this to me, so | - are you 3
| : I've ever done anything for . R Y T
20 A No, | don't believe I've St e 121 aware of any ofher rates or num!gfm ¢ g /
21 the state Attorney General's office while | wzs I q‘:ng 122 A lamnot So IW-M':_‘Q M{:ﬁ" !
; A tly be youth court matters B % - fit. That is what is | f
42 SteenalERy TN ‘Maybe a few criminal cases | 23 with the MW.W#:Z e “"@"‘ X
23 the Gulf Coast predominantly. May ¢ |24 offered by the Attomey Generals office, and as. W
124 to0. iy R i |25 tell you and as far as | know, h Wu o
25 Q And when you said you worlfed‘-oa_ﬂiar E | . : § " SR ARY
ol T i . sl e ._..‘.._—-—————-—-—*—-r"‘ i
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by the University of Missis

L8 just super lengthy

In the preparation of your report did you
assistance from others in your oiﬂce or

Sippi, | mean, the

Q
4 receive any
5 anyone else?

Page 26

R

|
| 1 was of leg_al nature. g oty

: And so pages 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, and 7is a
synopsis of my interpretation of what | aaw\in those

2
'8
| 4 records. Actually, | went one too far, 80 pages 2

{

| 24 the original determination of the cause and manner of

25 doath of Chioe Madison Britt," with her date of birth and

# job esserilally through my

g
25 as wel as | was offered

SN L L

PR e e ey

i" 3 A I mean, everybody in my office reviewed it for 1 : :::;?S:ﬁi' Begll ntn b §oﬂom & e O sk o
; {; .c':r:mmatmal errors. Did | get any medical assistance? | 7 Soldid th::nﬁ)r,t;: erpretation or assessment of the record, |
| 9 Q Otherthan proofreading. di ; i I then went back and looked at the
10 providudnk nRA N assistg;n‘i;': ;n::::::plz:q ; 15; da»ﬁ:r:antkafﬂdavils thai_ 1 guess you guys had supplied
e e A
12 Q Sotake me through, if "t mi ' . / wha oughts a
13 analysis that you did in !:e Jeﬁ)’:l; (Ij-loar\'/:z";:'sg’:s - ::25 ;n :'hat. And that comprises pégase through 10. And
14 related to your report. ; at's pretty typical of how | do these. ] =
15 A Okay. Doyou need this back? 4 8 Whenyoudo tmoughVRgdiaiiei <o yorffs:
16 Q IFlioaniye Hetens bual 4 15 Fdenttfy the injuries and then tr\e _umlng ofthose
17 A Here, | have the original. 16 injuries and then look at the history? Or just kind of
18 QB o ginal, 17 take me through how you do your analysis.
. you. 18 A Well, you start with what's the evidence in the
19 A Soagain, the request was to identify if there 19 case. So, | mean, | go through that and literally, much
20 was any new science that would affect the original 20 like y'all do, | take notes of everything, who said what,
21 determination of the cause and manner of death of Chloe | 21 when, where, what exams were done, who did what, and |
22 Madison Britt, who is the victim in this case. To write | 22 summarize all of that and what can | say from that, And
23 the report | reviewed the materials that were sent by the |23 that's the first part of this. e
24 Attorney General's office focusing in on all the medical 24 Q Do you start with the trial testimony first or ‘
25 records. |did not -- | skimmed through anything that 25 a history first? How — |
i W S ST obiterny WM e = B . "?'56629‘1
i) A | actually start with the medical records. So 1 her date of death. Is that correct? R
2 the trial testimony would be second. In fact, | put that 2 A Yes, sir. 1 .
3 less than all the other stuff. So | look at all the 3 Q Whatis cause and manner erdpa?tn?
4 medical record. | look at the autopsy. I'm trying to 4 A Causeis the factual basis of w’hg& led to the ‘
5 think of everything that was available in this case. Any | 5 death of the child. Manneris a It.agai opinion of tfse
6 recorded transcripts or statements pretrial. That all 6 various A in which one can die, sut::pes homicide,
7 comes first. 7 suicide, et. cetera. ‘ L ‘
8 Q Have you reviewed the trial testimony in this 8 Q Isityour understafﬁsijng‘ that‘ detc:;mlnlng\cause 4
9 case? 9 and mgnner-of death avve mandates from the State to the -~
10 A | have. 10 to a forensic patho!oglst? ) L p -
11 @ Were there witnesses that you paid special et ' ’T9 the medical a::mmars office, anfjln:;hism
12 attention to or did you read the whole trial transcript? ’g _:1:?;:&‘;2;:{ tothgcoftneataigicnes nathays
I read the whole thing. | mean, obviously, | o ) e :
13 gu:;s th; medical aspects Igwas more interested in than ':; /? :‘::9 you had any forensic training? £
15 the nonmedical ones. » ’ ‘
16 @ Whatwere the medical records that were 1: o gen(vz:? fmn?”mf:hg g W Lo ot
17 available specifically in the Chloe Britt 03.90"{ & 'A gahakial B it G scrind fhar
18 A | dothave indopendentrecall butitsthe |18 & B0l i - b b L anist gl
19 ings it ar o ntjupcrve and oveyting |19 o eoneney SOUELEL LD L)
20 was provided by the Attorney General's office. 121 that's what they called it back then but its riow called |
21 Q Wellpullthatup. Inyourreportyoustated 2% B8 BRI e $
e Ll i horll s mplaint: Request |22 child abuse : TR - ¢
22 it was your task to — it says cmewomn o o At the end of that | was offered by the A -
23 opinion whether there is new science that would |24 doanori school of medicine 10 get additional training &

o
5
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' third year. So the offer and the money was ve . ]  Page i
ry good, | 1 constantly looki takes "W*
2 and f accepted. And they sent me to various places for |2 asa way);f sht:sn\ng formy:;rkmmwbdgs g e .
3 further education, including the Center for Child | 3 the way up until | cn:m. 8 Sul ot o
| ~1 Protection in San Diego, California, and the Huntsville i 4 i

The intent wa eliows
: Program in Huntsville, Alabama, and local programs. Most | 5 but Mississippi, unhnu::;;a :d: :lot hwr:‘;umu:v
8 of those are on my CV, 16 1 'm
| equisite things necessary for
| 7 And so throughout my third year | was | 7 couldn'tdo it. i s i e
8 mentored by Dr. Kathy Kaufman, who ran the program, and 8

8 every one of my cases was reviewed by her beforeitwas | 9

Q  When you say Mississippi, the med school or -
A Well, the med school or Mississippi the state.

10 submitted out. And so I continued to do that the third 10 Q What was it missing?

11 year of my residency, and then | was offered an associate [ i} A It was missing a second board certified. Yo

12 professorship where, again, the continuing education | 112 have to have two, a minimum of two boa‘m-eenlﬁoduchﬂd
13 think | previously provided was required or mandated for | 13 abuse pediatricians in order to have a fellowship.

14 it | 14 Q  Are there any other board-certified child abuse
15 | actually became — there's only a few of |15 pediatricians in the state of Mississippi?

16 us that do this. | became friends with people all across |16 A No. Butwe're recruiting, so if you know of

17 the country. The Helfer Society had just started, and | 17 anybody.

18 was one of the charter members. And we started sharing |18 Q [l keep my eyes out.

19 information. We recognized that this was building up a 19 What is your definition of feronsm'?

20 body of knowledge that was greater than that of justa 20 A Forensic is to bring a matter to a forum,

21 general pediatrician, and so we started fellowships. And |21 That's its dictionary definition. So in this particular

22 | started a fellowship program, and | started training 22 aspect, other adjectives, it's the medical legel issues

23 fellows, which the old adage is: If you want to really 123 surrounding pediatrics. ’

|24 see if you know something, teach it, because it's sort of ; 24 Q When did the name change to child tbuu |

25 like law school: The people who are under you are | 25 pediatrics? ;

Wiachl ~ Page32| Pagﬁ
il A So we started thinking that we could possibly. i

Q And once you’re board certified as a child
2 have a subspecialty in the late '90s, early 2000s, and an

3 application was made to the American Board of Pediatrics.
4 You have to first show the fund of knowledge, what the Q How often?

5 factual bases are, you have to compile a full literature, A So the years that | took it, itﬂwas‘e.vms‘evoﬁ'

1
2 abuse doctor, do you have to renew it?
3
| 4
5

6 as in any other subspecialty. This is how they evolve. 6 years. They recently last year changed it to every fen
i
8
9
10

A Yes.

7 And the application included the name "pediatric forensic years, but then added annual education raqulumonk and
8 medicine," because that's what most people across the quality assurance requirements andmadrmosby. S&yos;
9 country thought was a neutral, fair-sounding name. so it's every ten years now.and Ihave to renew Both my

110 Well, at that time there already were general certificate and the ehudabush OQM

11 pediatric - not pediatric — forensic pathologists, 11 I've done my child abusé wqmﬁeateltlrhim w ¢
112 there were forensic psychologists, there were forensic 12 it was every seven yeaé And | have Whﬂ lp
|13 psychiatrists. Those were already accepted through 13 renew the child abuse, but it's eom]ng qp

14 American Board of Medical Subspecialties. The American ?\4 Q Dr. Benton, what is a forens ’ " : ‘
15 Board of Pediatrics said they didn't like the term 15 A Thisisa path ist who has .,.s _
16 “forensic.” It sounded too legally, and they said just 16 minimum analomt;‘mc o ‘m..na ney Mx
17 say what it is that you deal with. And so it was the residency in ana pathology, m‘:;q - “m
18 board that changed the name to child abuse pediatrics and | 18 in anatom mmogxm‘r;gnu:ﬁ s »
|19 said we would never establish it d you used the word 19 fellowship, gsmmltym np:dw o e Wm
20 forensic, even though that's what we do. 120 pathology or ‘ ot has's
21 Q When was that, I'm sorry?

22 A | believe that was in 2005, 2008, and the first
|23 boards were 2009

24 Q Andwhendadyouﬂmhhlmomo?

25 A 2008
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i R 3 > T Page 34 e gsl
1 A I'm willing to give my opinion where | can 1 A No. | wanted to become a pathologist, |
l 2 apply my knowledge to it, s0 ! guess to some degree, yes 2 trained really hard, but | didn't do it
l 3 It's not every case 3 Q Why didn't you do it?
’ 4 Q And to be fair, | could give opinions on a lot 4 A | enjoy pediatrics more
| 5 of things, but not tao many people are going to listen, 5 @ Are you aware of any entity that officially
! 6 you know, bacause | don't have the expertise on that 6 recognizes Dr. Benton's training as being sufficient to
| 7 and - 7 determine cause and manner of death?
8 A | would say a lot of people do listen to what | 8 A The state of Mississippi by statute recognizes
| g have fo say about cause and manner of death involving 9 my authority to give cause and manner of death i which |
10 children. | have been dealing with child death since the |10 am involved with the child. Now, so all physicians have
| 11 eary —or mid 1990s. We reviewed when | was in |11 that ability in the state of Mississippi. Now, it is
| 12 Louisiana every child death under age 18. We do the same 12 deferred in suspicious deaths to the coroner's office.
| 13 thing here in the state of Mississippi. So we look at (13 Q Was this considered a suspicious death?
| 14 every child death under the age of 18, every sudden, | 14 A Yes.
| 15 unexpected child death. We don't look at natural deaths |15 Q  Sowhat are your specific duties as a child
| 16 like cancer and stuff like that. 16 abuse doctor?
117 So that affords me an experience and a 17 A What are my specific duties at the University
18 background. | work with pathologists constantly. | | 18 or just —
4 19 attend most of the autopsies on the kids who I'm caring 119 Q Yes, in what you're doing right now. And
], 20 for who die. Probably at least in terms of the gross 120 you're doing something outside of the Universily, please
| 21 anatomy equivalent to that of a forensic pathologist | 21 let me know that as well.
22 rminus the histopathology, which | am not an expert in. 22 A No, everything | -- all my employment is with
23 Q Okay. Fair enough. So do you have any — |23 the University. So threefold job description. | am &
24 other than what you're talking about, observations, do 24 clinician, meaning that | see patients, predominantly
25 you have any specific training in Pﬂfhdomﬂ 25 inpatients of the Children’s Hospital dealing with severe
3 i Page36 | T T e
1 trauma, mostly on children who can't speak, or preverbal, | 1 a once-per-year introductory lecture.
2 nonverbal that are admitted to the Children’s Hospital. 2 Eaﬂyonlw.‘dﬂmlmumdo
4 | supervise an outpatient sexual abuse clinic in Jackson 13 Miss law school with David Calder assisting his family
4 and one in Tupelo, and we're trying to get one up in | 4 advocacy program. We've been a little busy to do that.
5 Biloxi and Hattiesburg and should have it in the next | 5 We keep talking about catching up. We work with MC law,
8 wummmww-tnmm [} MMMWWMM
7 aboul That's the clinical aspects. That's seeing {7 MMWMMMQIMMW
8 mmmamaouww '8 of Law, and Mississippi College. It's easier to do it
© Protective Services, law enforcement, attormeys, 9 MW&W”““MMI

10 emergency rooms, other physicians, and occasionally we'l
11 take a self-referral or @ parent wanis us to see the

12 child

2 Second job description is 10 teach. |

14 1each ot the medical school level. | teach at the

15 residency level 1o child psychiatrists, 10 pediatric.

18 tasidonts, famiy medicing resikients. mad school ievel.
1T e o mad students AN third years any requived 10
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FL : ot R —-~-—-~_~.._‘hpag"?§§f“,
| 1 lady just left. | don’t see them that often, so I'm | closest. She pick:
{2 nav):ng trouble with their names. But there's a tall, 2 ‘Plerosisa Wfﬂ;u:po;h:“::O;el;hS:,:,::n M:ry Clyde
3 thin man I'm sorry, this is terrible. They're going to 1 3 Chicago, has some People that work with hery ‘: don't
4 hate me, but | don't remember their names. i 4 recall their names, And 1t would be e ." n
5 Q There's worse things to be called than a tall, | 5 meaning we'd be discussing, and the Vidibe I:a?:t
& bl nen! | 8 Q fwant to make sure | understand what ouoc.;n
% A I mean, Lisa Funte, | have a case with her | 7 and cannot do as a child abuse doctor in Mlssii ippi
8 right now. | can't think of that -- there's three ‘ 8 Can you sign a death certificate? SIppi.
9 pathologists there now, and the fourth one was a female 9 A Yes.
10 that moved and | think is in Dallas now. So across the 10 Q W i .
11 country | work quite frequently with Mary Case, with 1 certificate:en b i Vg e toal
12 Karen Ross out of New Orleans, with -~ I'm trying to 12 A I've never signed a death certificate in the
13 think of his name — Schmunk, Greg Schmunk. | justhada |13 state of Mississippi. The last time | signed one was in
14 case with him recently. And Kim out at the University of 14 Louisiana,
15 South Carolina. I'm blanking on her last name. Kim. 15 Q Have you ever certified a death in acase of
16 Her husband is a federal judge. | cannot pull the last 16 nonnatural causes?

17 name out. I'm terrible with names. | feel badly because il A No.
18 these are people that | know. | used to teach with the 18
19 Uniform Services Division of Pathology. Tom was his 19
20 name. And that was out of Bethesda. Tom, starts with an | 20

21 S. 21 i
22 Q Do you ever work with any biomechanical 22 W
24 A Yes. Gina Bertocci out of University of 24 3

25 Louisville. Let's see. She's the one | worked with the 25 histopathologist. - v i
> Page 41

g N - Page 40 |

1 Q Do you teach in the teaching aspect of your job 1 m

2 determining cause and manner of death? 2 A Actually, | did put it in here.

3 A Yes. 3 Q Okay. So the causes of death in pathological

4 Q And in what courses? Is that in all the 4 findings, the immediate cause of death were ehangsg

5 courses? Do you teach the dental students that? 5 consistent with shaken baby syndrome and closed head

(] A No. So that would be just to the medical 6 injuries. Is that correct? E

7 students, and that is part of the curriculum. They all 7 A The order that he put it was closed head

8 have to learn that, because in — for natural deaths, any 8 injuries consistent with shaken baby syndrome, and the

9 that are non-sudden or unexpected they're required to 9 manner was homicide. )

10 give a cause and manner of death on the death 10 Q As we sit here, is it your opinion that the i

11 j j o oA immsdiatsedusgofff,wmmuﬂ&iﬁqg, changes consistent |
drome and closed head injuries?

e P

=
N

certificate. % 3

@ Have you ever testfied on behif of a criminal 12 with shaken baby sy

13 defondant that was alleged to have killed a child? o

14 A Noi ' 15

15 Q Have you ever testified in the case where an 15
. " 1 16

| A7
18

> B b T g, g

e trauma. | belie
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Page 42

the testimony of Dr. Hayne as Exhibit 3. And if you'll

turn with me to page 556, please, sir. Dr Benton, I
reading from line 5, the qQuestion: "Were .you ab|e' tom
mme to a conclusion as to cause of death in this
particular case?" Do you see where | am?

A ldo. ‘

Q And Dr. Hayne said, "Yes, sir." Correct?
A Yes.

Q And then the question was: "What was that?"
And Dr. Hayne -- what was Dr. Hayne's answer?

A "It was consistent with the shaken baby
syndrome, sir."

Q Aliright. Do you agree that the cause of
death in this particular case was shaken baby syndrome?

A I'would not have used that term. | don't
discount that there may have been some shaking involved,
but the death was from blunt head trauma.

Q  If we go further down to line 19, if you'll
read Dr. Hayne's testimony in the Jeffrey Havard case,
please, sir. And I'll tell you where to stop, if you'll
just read.

A Answer: "It would be consistent with a person
violently shaking a small child. Not an incidental
movement of a child, but violently shaking the child back
and forth to produce the types of injuries that are
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syndrome is one, the presence of a subdural hemorrhage;
two, the presence of retinal hemorrhage; and, three, the
absence of other potentially lethal causes of death."

Did | read that correctly?

A You did.

Q Do you agree with Dr. Hayne's description of
the shaken baby syndrome triad in his trial testimony?

A No.

Q What do you disagree with?

A It's interesting because at least in my field
of pediatricians, we don't use the term "triad," never
have, and this wouldn't be the triad that is typically
discussed anyway.

Q If we continue on it says, "Other etiologies or
causes of death." | don't know what that means. And it
says, "So it's inclusionary and exclusionary.” Do you
agree that shaken baby syndrome diagnosis is inclusionary
and exclusionary?

A I've never heard it put this way, so I'm not
(‘)u'\tg sure what is being meant when they say it's
inclusionary and exclusionary. Ifit's — | just don't
know, so | can't agree or disagree because I'm not sure
what the intent is there.

Q Okay. His next sentence says, "Both
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1 described as shaken baby syndrome, which is a syndrome
| 2 known for at least forty-five years now." i
l 3 Q Okay. Thank you. Do you agree that
| 4 Dr. Hayne's testimony was that the cause of death was
5 shaking alone at this point in the trial?
A With what he's saying there, yes.
Q He didn't testify about impact or trauma.
Correct?
9 A Within the sections that you've asked me to
| 10 read, no, he did not.
{11 Q Okay. And we're going to go over a few more
12 sections, but as you sit here and from your review of the
13 Jeffrey Havard matter, are you aware of at any time
i 14 during the Jeffrey Havard trial Dr. Hayne testifying
| 15 about trauma or impact causing the death of this child?
16 A | read this so long ago | would have to -- the
17 short answer is no, | don't recall whether he did or did
18 not include impact in his testimony.
19 Q If you look down to - just continuing on,
20 "Coined by a Dr. Coffee...," do you know who Dr. Coffee
21 is?
| 22
|23
| 24
| 25

| 6
|7
| 8

No, but | can guess who he was referring to.
Who do you think he was referring to?

Dr. Caffey.

It says, "...the classic triad for shaken baby

o> o >

! [P
| 1 subdural hemorrhage and the retinal hemorrhage. Do you

2 agree that in Chloe Britt there was — both of these were

3 present?
4 A Yes.
5 Q "..and also there was an exclusionary

6 component. | did not find any other cause of death,
| 7 sir." Do you now understand what he means by the

8 exclusionary component?

9 A As | read further, yes, | now understand. But

10 again, it's not -- I'm not used to hearing it put in such

11 manner, but I'm listening.

12 Q Okay. And so again Dr. Hayne is testifying

13 that the only cause of death he found was from vielent
14 shaking of Chloe Britt and no other cause of death.

15 Correct?

16 A Correct. ]

17 Q If you look down at the answer on 10, it says,
18 "The type of injuries that you can see that parallel

19 these are in motor vehicle crashes, falls from
20 significant heights and the like." Do you agree that the
21 types of injuries you see parallel injuries found in
22 those types of events? g e}
|23 A Dolagree with what he's saying, limiting it
24 just to subdurals and retinal hemorrhages or am |
25 applying this statement to the entire context of this
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1 child's case? 1 talked about any force, blunt force, as related to Chloe
2 Q Well, that's two great questions, so let's 2 Britt's injuries in this case?

3 start with the first one. | 8 A Without revisiting this entire transcript, |

4 A |don'tknow that you can just say from | 4 don't know the answer.

5 subdural hemorrhage and retinal hemorrhages that it |5 Q And as you sit here, you're not aware of -

6 definitely parallels or has to be of that level of force. | 6 A Yes, sir, I'm not aware, sorry.

7 You need much more information to be able to draw those | 7 Q Allright. We've talked a little bit about

8 conclusions. In this particular case | do think that the 8 some disagreements that you have with Dr. Hayne's

9 forces involved in this child are about that level of 9 testimony in this case. Are you aware of other

=
(=]

disagreements that you have that stand out from his
findings or his testimony in Chloe Britt's case?

A First off, I'm not sure | disagree with his
testimony. Ultimately, | agreed with his conclusion,
particularly as amended in that second deposition. So
overall, | might nitpick in that | don't understand some
of his use of words, but I'm not sure that | disagree
with his ultimate conclusion of cause and manner of
death.

Q In the trial you've testified -- of course, we
can go back and look at it, that you disagreed with his
triad description factors. Correct?

A Like | said, | may take some issues with some
of how he's describing things, but | don't disagree with
the overall conclusion.

10 violence that we would typically see that full

11 constellation of the findings seen in Chioe Britt.

12 Q Dr. Benton, if we look a little further down on

13 14, Dr. Hayne says, "We're talking about very violent

14 shaking." And then the question was: "And that was your
15 determination as to cause of death?" And he said, "Yes,
16 sir." Again, Dr. Hayne says that violent shaking alone

17 is the cause of death here for Chloe Britt. Correct?

18 A | don't know that he ever says it alone, and |

19 go back to the previous question you asked. | don't know
20 that he ever talks about the impact injuries to this

21 child. So I don't know that | can affirm that he's

22 talking about violent shaking alone.

23 Q And again, you've already answered this, so |

24 don't want to go back over it, but are you aware of any

TN NN ey ==y ey o
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25 time that Dr. Hayne during the trial of this matter 25 Q And just so we're clear, there was a conclusion
* e ~Page 48 W Page 49
1 and testimony at the trial of Jeffrey Havard. Correct? 1 Q s there controversy currently regarding if
2 There was testimony by Dr. Hayne at the trial of this 2 shaking can accurately be diagnosed after the fact? In
3 case. 3 other words, is there a certain set of findings that
4 A Yes. 4 indicate that a child was shaken?
5 Q But you're referencing something that happened 5 A Yes.
6 after Jeffrey Havard was convicted and sentenced to 6 Q And what's your understanding of the current
7 death. Correct? When the supplemental deposition of - 7 controversy?
8 A Correct. 8 A Well, | was answering the second question, is
2 Q -- Steven Hayne -- okay. 9 there an understanding that there are findings for --
10 As we sit here, is it your opinion that 10 Q | object to my own duplicative question.
11 the testimony that Dr. Hayne gave regarding cause and 11 A So as to the first one, | believe that there is
12 manner of death was complete and accurate at the time of | 12 a fringe group of individuals across the world that have
13 the trial? 13 challenged the general consensus of what findings can be
14 A Sojust to be clear, at the time of trial in 14 interpreted as. You can call it controversy if you want.
15 his report he said this baby died of closed head injuries 15 Q What's your definition of fringe groups?
16 consistent with shaken baby syndrome, and the manner was | 16 A Anyone that's not using the best science to
17 homicide. I'm in agreement with that. | also think his 17 advance an argument in a medical legal field. So when we
118 subsequent clarification adds to exactly what type of 18 continue to use old literature, literature that had
19 closed head injuries we're talking about. The report 19 dubious methodology where you see the same discredited
20 ftself backs up the impact injuries, whether those words 20 articles consistently being used to advance a position
| 21 are mentioned or not. 21 when other articles have taken care of the methodology
122 Q Have there been changes regarding the |22 and refuted that, that's a fringe use of -- it's almost :
23 .qndem,fa,ndlng,o[ pediatric head injuries since 20027 23 an advocacy without scientific basis in some cases. In
524 ¢ A  Generally speaking, yes. | mean, we're ] 24 some cases there's a science basis, but the science has £
25 constantly evolving our knowledge about head injuries. i 25 not been logically elaborated.
i 1 0
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1 Q Do you think that the American Academy of 1 A Predominantly the bilateral subdural |
2 Pediatricians is a fringe group? 2 hemorrhages that are whole hemispheric to both sides of
3 A s the American Academy of Pediatrics? No, | 3 her head. The bilateral retinal hemorrhages, which
| 4 don't think it's a fringe group. 4 include retinal folds, and they are multilayered and
8 Q And thank you for that correction. 5 severe. We just don't see those in accidents.
6 American Medical Association, is that a 6 @ Justso yourtestimony is clear, you're not
7 fringe group? 7 believing that shaking alone killed Chloe Britt,
8 A I'm not aware of -- | mean, | used to be a 8 i
9 member of the American Medical Association. I'm not 9 m
10 aware of them -- | mean, if we say fringe group within 10 Q Are there other conditions that can cause
| 11 the realm of child abuse, | don't know that they have any ' 11 subdural hemorrhages?
12 major positions, although they do have a section that 12 A Yes.
13 deals with pediatric issues. They're not very big in 13 Q Suchas?
14 abuse issues. 14 A Inmy report | list them all. But in my
15 Q Would you agree that child abuse doctors are 15 experience the most common causes are trauma, and that
16 also advocates for a position? 16 can come in three forms: inflicted trauma is definitely
17 A Sure. | think we're all advocates for a 17 the most common; accidental trauma, the next most common;
18 position. 18 and birth trauma if we're dealing with kids under three
19 Q Did Chloe Britt suffer injuries from shaking in 19 months of age, as we frequently will find subdural
20 this case that you're aware of? 20 hemorrhages.
21 A | think it's possible. | think she definitely 21 Then we go down the list. And those are
22 sustained some severe acceleration/deceleration injuries, 22 broad sweep. So we see them in genetic and metabolic
23 of which shaking is one possible mechanism of that. 23 disorders. We see it with coagulopathies, or bleeding
24 Q What is your -- what are the findings that are 24 disorders. And there's a list of different things. We
25 consistent with what you just said? 25 can see tumors. We can see anything that affects those
= YT Page 52 Page 53
1 systems indirectly, like leukemia, neuroblastoma. | 4 Q And | know we have your list of cases here, at
2 could look at my list and flesh it out for you, but 2 least at the time and you're going to give us an updated
3 there's a list of things that can cause subdurals. 3 one, but other than the Chloe Britt case, have you given
4 Q Dr. Benton, did you make a diagnosis of cause 4 opinions in a case, either whether it's the habeas level
5 of death that was separate from Dr. Hayne's findings in 5 orin post-conviction --
6 this case? 6 A 1don't know what habeas means.
il A | don't think so. | think | just reaffirmed i Q Okay. Solet me strike that. And thank you
8 his latest position. | agreed with it. | don't think | 8 for slowing me down because | was going to just say a
| 9 set - let me just double-check. | don't think I 9 bunch of legal stuff and you wouldn't know any of it
110 advanced a separate position. And as | sit here now, | 10 maybe.
111 agree. 11 A Imay or may not. I've heard habeas corpus,
12 Q Do you believe it's your role to determine 12 but | don't really know what it means.
18 manner of death? Is that a child abuse doctor's role? 13 Q Okay. Other than the Chloe Britt case, have
14 A So within the confines of state statutes as far 14 you given reports or opinions in a forensic situation
15 as for the initial first official determination, that is 15 after the trial has already taken place?
16 relegated to the coroner in the state of Mississippi, so 16 A No, | think this is the first.
17 lhave norole. | can advocate for what | believe, but 17 Q Are you aware of other cases that the State has
18 it's not my official role. 18 asked you to get invoived in, for example, regarding
19 Same thing post-determination, we do this, | 19 other people that were convicted of shaken baby syndrome?

120 we meet and review every death as to cause and manner of
21 death for every sudden, unexpected death. | may disagree
22 what's there, but once it's on the final death

23 certificate, we have no authority to change it or even to
' Wheﬂmﬁo init. That's just how the statutes are

|25 sotup, :

20 A Thisis the first.

21 Q Do you believe that Chioe Britt was the victim

22 of abuse?

23 A Yes, ¢

24 Q Do you have an opinion that the abuse caused
this death?
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| 1 A Yes. | 1 BY MR JICKA:
: 2 Q And do you have an opinion as to what that 2 Q You can go ahead and answer.
!; 3 abuse was? 3 A | don't have a firm opinion only because |
j 4 A | mean, we can speculate as to the exact | 4 don't think we - | don't think all the evidence was
| 5 mechanisms, but | do think it involved blunt traumato | 5 thoroughly evaluated to come to that conclusion. | think
| 6 the head that had a severe acceleration/deceleration 6 itis possible she was sexually abused. | think it's
7 force to the head. There's also evidence of other 7 also possible we could come to a different determination
8 injuries to parts of the body that in a six month old are | 8 if we had the ability to go back and look at things.
9 equated with abuse. 9 Q What would be the type of information that you
10 Q Would a fall cause blunt trauma to a child's 10 would like to see to make that determination?
11 head? 11 MR. SMITH: Objection.
12 A ltcan, yes. 12 MR. JICKA: And | understand it's the same.
13 Q And what other areas were you talking -- are 13 You can -- we'll just note the objection.
14 you talking about as it relates to Chloe Britt? 14 A With what he objected, | did not make any
15 A The child's got a torn frenum. The child has 15 special effort to look at this, but if you go back
16 i i igh a 16 through the whole record, | would like to see what
17 p a wi 17 instrumentation was done to the child's rectum. And
18 bruising to the rectum. 18 again, | did not take note or make note of that because |
19 Q Have you reviewed or do you have any opinions | 19 was told that wasn't an area of interest.
20 regarding whether Chloe Britt suffered from any sexual |20 But it's clear there was a contusion.
21 assault in this case? 21 Even your own experts have seen that on the
22 MR. SMITH: I'm going to object, and I'd like 22 histopathologic slide. | don't necessarily agree with
23 to give a basis. The sexual battery injuries to the 23 Dr. Ophoven when she says there has to be a break in the
24 sexual battery are beyond the scope of this remand, |24 skin. That actually doesn't make any sense. |'ve done
25 and it's irrelevant. 3 ol 25 thousands of rape exams, and | don't think that's a true
IS r Page 56 g ~Page 57 |
1 statement. ‘ 1 THE WITNESS: I'm fine.
2 The biggest concern for me it that there's 2 BY MR. JICKA:
3 blood in the infant's diaper that is seen in the crime 3 Q Dr. Benton, did you personally review the
4 lab, in the crime lab reports but wasn't pursued any 4 videotaped interview of Jeffrey Havard where he describes
5 further. And yes, there's no sex-specific findings of 5 the accidental fall?
6 semen or sperm, but the blood in the diaper indicates 6 A No.
7 something has happened before there was any medical | 7 Q Where did you get your information about the
8 instrumentation or, as advanced by Havard, that perhaps | 8 fall?
9 there was -- well, there had to have been some 9 A Transcript.
10 penetration to get into the rectum. 10 Q Would you agree that history is important when
11 BY MR. JICKA: 11 you're evaluating a case such as Chloe Britt's?
12  Q The frenulum. 20 A Yes:
18 A Yes. |13 Q And why is that?
14 @ Just my understanding, that's the inside of 14 A Because it sets the context and perhaps other
15 your upper lip. Is that correct? 15 peripheral details that can modify your opinion of the
16 A It's the piece of fibrous tissue that connects 116 factual details or objective details.
17 the upper lip to the gums. (17 Q What is your understanding of the dynamics of
18 Q Did you read the trial testimony where the | 18 the accidental fall as described by Jeffrey Havard?
19 State decided that it was not going to pursue that as 119 A The child was in a infant tub inside of an
20 abuse or as — or as abuse in this case? |20 adult tub, was removed by Havard. And I've seen the
21 A lreadit. | don't recall it as we sit here |21 photographs of the scene, so there's a commode just to —
22 right now. | 22 if you're facing the tub, there's a commode just to the
23 MR. JICKA: How are you doing? Thisisnota |23 rightof the tub that he was -- there was a towel lying
24 marathon. | don't want to — if you need a break — | 24 over the seat of the commode. And that he had the child
| 25 in hand, that apparently was trying to get to the towel,

are Yyou good to keep on trucking?
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Page 58
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A | don't think so. As I sit here, I'm trying to

A Same thing. So we have to still listen to the

1 that the child's legs hit the lid of the toilet, and he %
2 was ~ he used the word definitely sure that the body or | 2 recall what she would've said, and since | can't, | don't
3 torso hit the tank, was not as sure whether the head hit | 3 think | saw that.
4 the tank or not. 4 Q Dr. Benton, what I'd like to do is go through
5 After that interaction or somewhere in 5 your table of Findings of Injury on page 5 of your
6 that interaction he said he possibly may — that may have | 6 report, sir. Are you with me, sir?
7 been one instance where he could have penetrated the | 7 A lam
8 child's rectum. That the child was wiggling and he | 8 Q On the top it says Pediatric Forensic Medicine
9 dropped the child. Actually uses the word slide and/or 9 Consultation Report. Is this a chart that Dr. Benton has
10 drop in different circumstances in the record. The floor |10 come up with or is this one that you have received from
11 in that area is a red carpet kind of shag, '70ish carpet. | 11 some other — used from some other source?
12 And that the child gasped, that he picks the child up, he | 12 A No, | created it.
13 says that the child was altered mentally, my words, | |13~ Q And whatId like to do'is just kind of go
14 don't recall his exact words, and that he shook the child | 14 through how it's set up. Okay, sir?
15 to revive the child, and subsequently grabbed the towel, | 15 A Sure.
16 brought the baby to the bedroom, and | think the child | 16 @ Allright. So it says Findings of Injury. s
17 deteriorated from there. That's my understanding. 17 that correct?
18 Q Thank you. Did you read or view the video 18 A Correct.
19 statement of Rebecca Britt? 19 Q And then the first column says Type. Is that
20 A ldidnot. 20 correct?
21 Q Were you provided any information regarding 21 A Yes, sir.
22 that? 22 Q@ And so are you frying to identify all of the
23 A | definitely was not provided any video. | 23 findings of injury from the evidence available?
24 Q Do you recall seeing a transcript of her | 24 A Yes, sir.
25 pretrial interview? 25 Q And then you have Location next, which would be
T I ~ Page 60 Page 61
1 where that injury is located. Correct? 1 history to it because we do see - we don't see it as
2 A Yes, sir. 2 much anymore; people are smoking less. But certainly -
3 Q And then Pattern, what do you mean by pattern? i 3 Q That's another benefit.
4 A Does it have a pattern. So in our field, 4 A Children would run past a cigarette and sustain
5 patterns mean a lot, so such as belt buckle pattern or 5 a cigarette burn, and | wouldn't call that necessarily
6 parallel linear patterns that would indicate contact with 6 abusive. So yes, we do look at certain patterns, and
7 an object or things like that. 7 there are certain -- | mean, I've definitely had some
8 Q Okay. And so in your field as a child abuse 8 cases where you see their abdomens burned and their faces
9 doctor, if there's a pattern, that could be evidence that 9 burned, and these aren't typically accidental areas.
10 there has been some systemic child abuse. 10 Q Allright. So when you use the word
1 A It doesn't necessarily imply abuse, but it does 11 "amorphous" on the pattern, what does that mean?
12 imply contact with a specific object that we then want to 12 A Without pattern or without shape.
13 hear a history to explain that, and the absence of an’ 13 Q Andlsee -
14 explanation may lend towards abuse as opposed to an 14 A Orit's not described.
15 accident. But it's not always that simple. Some 15 Q As you go down, it has "multifocal.” What does
16 patterns are very specific. | mean, belt buckles, | 16 that mean as a pattern?
17 mean, when you see them, particularly in repetition, you |17 A | putthatin quotes because that's the pattern
18 have to come up with a really good explanation why that's | 18 as it was described in the autopsy report. It wasn't
19 on a child's body. 19 more specific than that.
20 Q Have you ever worked on cases where you had 20 Q Does autopsy use the term "pattern”?
21 cigarette burns in a pattern on children? 121 A They should.
22 A Yes. 22 Q Well, 'm asking did this one use the term
23 Q Would that be the type of pattern that would | 23 pattern in it? ;
24 also ?e included? |24 A | would have to look at the report to see if he
| 25 used the term pattern. But the word used relative to the

. 844,533 DEPO
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Page 62
1 hematomas to the scalp was multifocal, and it didn't go

2 further in specifying the pattern or direction.

8 Q The next says N slash A. What does that mean

4 under Pattern?

5 A Edema doesn't have a pattern, SO it's not

6 applicable. ‘
7 Q And we see that again with the laceration. Is

8 that correct? |

[
|
|
|
|
|
|
|

XN WN =

9 A (Nods head affirmatively.)

10 Q So frenulum laceration wouldn't have a pattern? ‘
11 A Itdoesn't, no.

12 Q@ And then when you see hemorrhage, it says "not

13 specified." What does that mean?

14 A There was notation that there -- let's see,

15 where is this one? The hemorrhages to the retina of the
16 eyes were not specified at the time | wrote my report.

17 Actually, Dr. Ophoven, who looked at the histopathology,
18 does give us a pattern, which previous to that | didn't |
19 know the specific pattern. }
20 Q On the patterns regarding certain hemorrhages,
21 what do you show there? As you go through the last |
22 guess four items on hemorrhage? |
23 A So to be specific, the hemorrhage to both eyes
24 s referring to the retina was not specified at the time
25 | wrote this. The next hemorrhage is to the optic nerve

- Page 64 |
1 recognition that we have to -- we can't look at things in
2 isolation, and other factors would have to come in to

3 further classify.

4 So in that column | am looking at the

5 injuries that are there and saying what specificity does
6 that have along that continuum of reliability for

7 defining abuse. To flesh out the scale there's normal,
8 nonspecific, concerning, suggestive, and definitive.

9 Normal, obviously there's no finding, so that doesn't
10 apply to this. These would only apply to abnormal

11 findings.

12 Nonspecific is a finding that's been so

13 well described in both accidental and non-accidental
14 etiologies that you can't even look at it. Examples of
15 that would be amorphous, bruises to the shins of a
16 walking child. | mean, I'm more concerned if they don't
17 have any bruises there. So we can't make any judgment
18 call. Can you beat a child on the shins? Sure. But I'd
19 need additional information to classify that finding. So

21 Concerning is where the literature looks

22 at abused kids and looks at accidental kids, and we see a
123 _Izigﬂpf frequency of this finding in the non-abused - I'm
{24 somy, inthe abused population. So it should provoke

B G S
26

15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

|23

24

|25

1
2
3
4
5
6
i
8

9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
|23
24
25

25 concem, but it doesn' define abuse. And you should
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sheets, and I'm not aware of any classification by
pattern of those other than to comment that they're
present. The next is acute subdurals that are
bi-hemispheric, acute subarachnoid hemorrhage, and the
locations of that to the cerebrum, cerebellum, and
brainstem. So that's the last two hemorrhages, the
subdural and the subarachnoid.

And they're whole hemispheric. There's no
specific pattern to it that limits it down. Occasionally
we will see what's called a contact pattern, which is @
small subdural that usually is underlying an area of the
skull that may or may not have a fracture. These are
just diffuse, so there's no specific pattern to it, and
that's why | put N/A for those, not applicable.

Q The next column says Specificity. What does
that mean?

A This:is something that was not totally my
creation, but Dr. Adams in San Diego had evolved a
classification system of looking at each injury and
looking at it independent of history, looking at it
independent of any other what can this injury tell us
along a continuum scale of reliability where on one end
we say there is no injury and that's normal, and on the
other end we say, gosh, this injury alone defines that a
person has been abused. In between that scale isa

"Page 65
never use a concerning finding in isolation of other
facts to come to a definitive conclusion.

Suggestive is a recognition that there are
scientific things out there that we may or may not know
but that we can categorize or that we can theorize or be
logical about and say that this finding is almost
exclusively seen in abuse, but | can come up logically
with reasons why it might occur in a non-abused child.

And then definitive are findings -- and

there's very, very few of those -- are findings that
there is no other explanation. We don't need any other
information to further classify.

 any definitive findings of abuse. Correct?
A Correct.

Q And in this chart are you aware of other child
abuse doctors or anyone else that uses the chart that you
have here in front of us?

A Every one |'ve trained. So all of my former
fellows use this. | think, for whatever reason, most
people move to a shorter dichotomy of just normal,
nonspecific, concerning, and definitive, and they drop
the suggestive. For physical abuse. They may use the
five-point scale for sexual abuse. i

Q When did you come up with this chart,
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1 Page 66 |
; Iy = | 1 textbooks that you're aware of?

g i /:(’) Like | said, it was based off of - oh, this (2 A Sume itsin_| wrote?hé chapter in th
art? i ’ rin the

. L | 3 textbook, so, | mean, I published this. It's g shame |

: 2 8 ' . can't remember the titie of the book.

3 Contemporanaously with reviewing the records. | Q Well get your —

7

8

4
(el ]
o comls;nus‘;a‘r'rv\i(t,h t;: format for this chart, when did 3 ChA It's !forensic Pathology of Infancy and
g ildhood is the textbook. And itwould be in my CV. |
A Oh, somewhere in the late 1990s. Dr. Adams. 8 didn't even think to look there. I's Forensic Pathol
came out -- Dr. Adams - and it's in the article "It's 9 of Infancy and Childhood. | wish the e
10 Normal to be Normal," that's the title of the article. 10 themso!-- g
11 It was a sex abuse article. But | was taken by how she | 11 Q That's okay. Soas we look on our CV in th
12 framed each of the injuries in isolation of the history, ’ 12 publication list, it's Book Chapter - is itythe e
13 because that's what forensics is about. And that's 13 Abuse of the Young"?
14 something that was drilled into me when lwasinSan |14 A ltis.
15 Diego is that if the history determines the finding, then |15 Q And that was published in 2014. Is that
16 you're not evaluating the finding; you're just taking the | 16 correct?
17 history for it. 17 A Thatis correct.
18 So we have to communicate to youguysor |18 Q  So prior to 2014, are you aware of this chart
19 whoever is interested what does the finding meanin | 19 ever being published in any textbook?
20 isolation as well as put it in the context, but do them 20 A So there are charts and — the answer is yes,

Dr. Benton?

©

would page number

“Sexual

21 separately. And that's the third application of any {21 but maybe not exactly the way | — so there are numerous
22 evaluation of injury. | 22 people. Dr. Adams is probably the foremost person who
23 Q Have you trademarked or copyrighted or — 23 has evolved guidelines for how to classify things. She
24 A No. 24 strictly limits herself to sexual abuse. She's never

25 Q -~ anything in this chart? Is itin any 25 gone into the physical abuse realm. | thought it had

g N Page 68 T, Page 69

1 applicability, and so I've extended it there. So you 1 pathologists. | mean, it's one of the - one of the...

2 will see various versions of this concept in the child 2 Q One of the good ones?

3 abuse literature and textbooks, but most of it is going | 3 A Yes. | mean, those are two leading authors.

4 to be towards sexual abuse. | 4 And I'm very sad to say Kim Collins is the pathologist |

8 Q And that's why | meant this, you know, the 5 forgot to say before out of the University of South

6 Benton chart as | want to call it now. | 6 Carolina.

7 A No, don't call it that. iz Q Then the final category is Consistent with

8 Q Doesn't that sound good? So the Benton chart, } 8 History.

9 before 2014 are you aware of it ever being published in | 9 A So that's the third application.- So you start
10 any textbook? 10 first with what does it mean in isolation, and then the
11 A No. - 11 third factor is to apply the history to it, is the
12 Q Did you publish it other than in — the "Sexual | 12 history consistent.

|13 Q Allright. When you do your chart, do you
14 always have an asterisk after the yes or a no?
|15 A No. So this is definitely -- so it's a good

Abuse of the Young," has it been published in any other
textbooks or other chapters?

-
B w

16 A Again, there are other people that have ) 10
16 published in reliability scales, but not what | have f 16 question. So‘ongmally e ikt B L
17 characterized a five-point scale. | mean, there are {17 Q I'm going to have like thre e ad
18 other five-point scales. Again, I'm leveraging off of |18 the aﬂernggn, so.oount‘thkeerr:3 :z.one s s

19 other people's works. And actually, if you look at that 19 A Originally if you tal 3

| 20 isolation, the consistent with history could be true if

20 chapter, | cite the evolution of these scales, so all the | 4 _ s i e
i v | i at one finding, or maybe .
: S previous le's works on how | 21 it was just th . . v
Z; :i;zaet\l:;i g;at describes previous peop! 20 nr itorics{wekin sl “;“'l';:f‘h:s:eﬂf:‘gme
R Who.is sing that textbook now, the sex 123 we only have maybe hit the head on HLA /
o b o |24 head on the floor, that's not even definitive. We jus
T s 125 kﬁow the kid slid, ldmppad‘ to the floor, not sure what

125 A Predominantly pathologists, forensic
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body part actually hit the floor. And now we have aF;Iag? o 1 A Correct. Any of TR
these. So | went back and | put the asterisk next to 2 Q Whenyou Zi:slzzrs;]?:? iotdoioe
:gocs:, :ra):;gft:\:etsroublel is, we don't have enough history | 3 considering the full history or O"Ilys‘t(:\gfr;?:{s ?(;e you

€ findings. And that's why | put no. 4 that was described? ¢
4 C:.} Looks like you have a maybe for edema on the 2 A Sp all history tha'n 1 took into account is
ek S Bl

Q So that might be consistent with the history 8 Q So that would incl do i ;
that was given? e el e fal. Girms Ry

A Well, when people start dying and things alter 10 A Yes.
pretty quickly, you can lggt edemartoitheface oriather 11 Q Would it include what happened at the ER
places. So maybe that's included in the process. Itwas |12 with -
not significant to me. 13 A Yes.

Q The chart, the Benton chart on finding 14 Q --the ER nurses and so forth?
consistent with history, what are -- you gave me the 15 A Oh, yes.
range as it related to specificity. Is there also a 16 Q Okay. Isitimportant when you're trying to do
range -- and I'm guessing it might be yes, no, maybe, but | 17 this to determine the timing of these entries, in other
what are all the different findings you could have under | 18 words, when did certain things occur?
consistent with history? 19 A Where able, yes.

A It's adichotomy. | mean, it's either yes, no, 20 Q Did you make an attempt in the Jeffrey Havard
or | guess unsure. That part of it | purposely do not 21 case to make a determination as to the timing of these?
offer a specific opinion because that's now invading the | 22 A 1did not only in the sense that all of the
province of the chart artifact. 23 injuries that we see here are of an acute timing that our

Q And you agreed that child abuse doctors should |24 current medical understanding of the time frame is too
not do that. 25 big to be of any significance in discerning a who. So

3 b= i Page 72 | " L Page 73 |
the only time | will make timing statements is if it can 1 Q What is yaur understanding of Jeffrey Havard's
discern the who. So, | mean, you can go down the list, | 2 description of Chloe's symptoms right after the impact?
but most of those our - the limits of our ability to 8 A So after he dropped her, as | previously
time are on the order of a week or more, nothing that 4 said -- and | assume this is when she hits the floor she
would be of help, so | did not do anything further. 5 kind of gasped for air is his words. He then picks her

Q Did you make a determination as to the possible 6 up, says that he shook her side to side, and he said that
etiologies of each of these injury findings? 7 she started crying again. The next recording of her

A | mean, | certainly considered it in each, and 8 behavior was that she spit up some more in the bedroom
the ones that are labeled non-specific | didn't come up 9 and that she had blood which he attributed to coming from
with anything. The ones that are labeled concerning | 10 her nose. And that he laid her down on her stomach but
certainly leaned towards this has some predilection that 11 doesn't describe any other behaviors after that.
something non-accidental happened to the child. The ones | 12 Q Dr. Benton, is it fair to say that that's a
that are labeled suggestive, as | previously stated, are 13 pretty normal description of a concussion with an acute
seen fairly frequently, aimost to the exclusion, but it's 14 subdural hematoma, what he described there? Take a look.
not definitive, meaning that there are some circumstances | 15 A No, | wouldn't say that that's a typical
where if you have the right history you can see these 16 description, unh-unh.
findings. i Q If someone had an acute subdural hematoma from

Jid you request or perform a biomechanical ‘ 18 a concussion, would these be symptom§ that you would —
sy [ 19 you could expect to see someone describe, a layman

20 describe?

ﬂé you able to do that? e 1A No". Soa Iéyn:an describe. 1 mean, did he use

A Yes. Well, with the Attorney General's money 22 theword *ooncusslon”®
e |

: ay. So restate th Pl J
Q Assuming they would cut ihe s zg Q Sur:. What you just read, the description of =

A We've done that in other ¢ases, but no.
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£ ‘ _ : Page 74 D o
" : oe's syrvjptoms right after impact, is that a pretty g ! 1 generally when we do i e TE]
B air deseription of a concussion with an acute subdural | 2 usually unconsgi ol e P
S bhntakts | y : c nscpusness on the brain, and it is in almost

. o | 3 all descriptions, including invention descriptions where
. | 4 people confess to injuri id, it's i
5 Bt A juring the kid, it's instant:
5 = mz ;/:\h); not? . | 5 and the lights are out. g
. for multiple reasons. First off, the [6 Q IfChloehadh isti
5 L : 5 ad a preexisting injury to h
. g::splf‘or glr implies impact eltﬁer to the abdomen or 7 head, would that make her more vulner;bllz to cz:\c i
gs yplcall'y, »If I had to ascribe anything to it. The | 8 and injury from a second event? g
9 crying doesn't fit. | mean, | would say in the thousands 9

A Restate the question one more time.

10 of cases that we look at where kids fall out of bed and 10 Q If Chioe had a preexisting injury to her hi

11 stuff, they pick them up and they're crying. So that 11 would that make her more vulnerable?; Zo 5 e'ad'

12 could fit a fall, | don't have any problems with that, 12 injury from a second event? s
13 but that's not'a concussion. 18 A The short answer is we don't think so. So

14 So in our world a concussion is an altered 14 there is a body of literature called second~im.pact

15 state of mentation. We don't typically think of 15 syndrome, which is under heavy scrutiny in a lot of - so
16 concussions in an infant, or at least we don't use that 16 it was published, | believe, about in the mid 1990s, et
17 word. We think of it more in sports-related injuries. 17 cetera, and involved high-impact injuries among :

18 I'm not saying that you can't have a concussion. 18 footballers, et cetera. | think it came out of

19 Now, to the second part of your question, 19 Australia.

20 when | see a subdural like this, bi-hemispheric, whole 20 And we considered that. Is there a

21 hemispheric, | use that as a marker of what else is going | 21 priming, so to speak, of particularly the sodium or other
22 on. Sowe see plenty of kids who have subdurals, and |22 channels in the brain that might lead one to have a more

N
w

they have no effect on the child whatsoever. | mean, so |23 severe injury than one would expect. Except we just

24 it's not blood in the subdural space that's the problem; 24 don't see that in other accidental injuries. Now, we
25 it's the underlying pathology of the brain. And 25 certainly give that advice to families, but so far we

] : WS Al frisig® I ~ Page76| 3 ~ Page77
1 have not seen sudden death in a kid who's previously had | 1 evaluation. Do we want to risk anyone's life about that?
2 a known accidental head injury. 2 Well, the professional people do. | mean, they try to
3 Q And you're probably watching a lot of 3 hide their concussions because they're paid to play. But
4 television lately, but we see football players who have 4 in high school, you know, we'll cut it short. In
5 repeated concussions and the fact that it may -~ the 5 soccer - | was a soccer referee -- we take no chances.
6 first concussion or the second concussion may make you | 6 If you have a slight dizziness or something, we call it a
7 more vulnerable as you continue to receive concussions. | 7 concussion, and you sit out and you got to sit out until
8 s that a fair statement? 8 a significant time has passed, which we don't know what
9 A Yes, | think it's fair to say that severe head 9 thatis. Isthere a true vulnerability? We don't know.
10 injuries that happen repetitiously is not a good thing 10 Q In your job as a treating physician, do you
11 for the brain. 11 actually treat patients in your job?

12 @ And not only not a good thing, but it continues 12 A We do. Well, | mean --

13 to get — you become more vulnerable after each event. |13 Q Does Dr. Benton ‘see peoplt.a as a doctor?

14 A If you're using vulnerability in the way | 14 A We see living Qatlents, and if they have

15 think of it with the literature on second-impact 15 problems that fa‘ll within the realr'n of ger}eral o
16 syndrome, | think the jury is out on that. If you're 16 pediatrics, we will tr?at them for it as we're evaluating
17 using it in terms of -- and I've not seen the movie, but 17 the reason that they're there. AR
18 the guy in Los Angeles that helped to establish that 18 ’ Q Okay. And when you say “we," that's y
19 there was pathology to the brain with repetitious injury, 19 thing - 3

20 | agree with that. So I'm not sure what to say about 20 A I'm sorry about the ror):al we;)h: :!r: ;&t:;.pmm
321. vulnerability other than our concussion guidelines were 2 «Q Okay. Do yf:u tre.at.h ?::V); s
22 predicated off of the second-impact syndrome, whether {22 who have had -- children who

i i ast | also did
- |23 you're talking about professional football players or 23 A Notin aklo:g gjr;(:o:\‘; 'E"::’é’rk‘ e,
| 24 high school or what have you. 24 hospitalist work a 8¢ BN

26 And | think they're constantly under 25 first five to six years | was starting out. Asl got‘

i
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1" busy with this, no. That would mostly be in the f8 1" at the time who had recruited me, and the University 522“ 3
2 emergency room or hospital setting. 2 being sued for failing to recognize abuse in some cases,

3 Q Howdo you get your patients typically? Are | 3 which Dan Jones is a very honorable person said we did,
{1 they referred to you by an ER doctor or a primary care 4 we're going to pay up on this, but we don't want this to

5 physician? How does it - or a parent? Howdoesitget | 5 happen again, what can we do.

6 toyou? | 6 The general teaching previous to that time

Z A So we have many vehicles. Child Protective 7 was not adequate to keep an open mind about whether

8 Services, law enforcement are a major referring; the 8 parents or caregivers could be abusers. So we assembled
9 youth court under the Multidisciplinary Team Act is a 9 ateamin, shoot, two months after | got here | got hit

10 maijor referral; emergency room physicians, as you 10 with that charge, and we got representatives from every
11 mentioned, pediatricians, family physicians, 11 major division and department at the University. And we

12 psychiatrists, sort of in somewhat decreasing order. 12 met for about two years. And as they say about the

13 And we have mandatory triggers. So the 13 sausage making in the legislature, this is true here too.

14 University has what's known as a high-risk surveillance 14 We came up with what do we want the computers to survell,

15 system, which | implemented. So there are certain 15 1 mean, because this is, you know, putting people under

16 diagnoses, such as subdurals, retinal hemorrhages, 16 the microscope type of thing. And that evolved over two

17 subarachnoid hemorrhages, all admissions for trauma, all | 17 years. So in 2010 the system went live and has been

18 skeletal fractures regardless of where they are, all 18 going ever since.

19 abdominal trauma, all ingestions, all suicide attempts, 19 Q Would you agree that UMMC is now more likely to

20 all gunshot wounds, all knife wounds are referred to us 20 over-diagnose child abuse?

21 automatically. | mean, there's no -- a computer does 21 A No, no evidence of that whatsoever.

22 that. | mean, they're just pulling it off the chart, and 22 Q The problem was there was some found child

23 we get the referral. 23 abuse that was not diagnosed. Correct?

24 Q When did you come up with this system? 24 A Correct.

25 A Dan Jones was the chancellor -- vice-chancellor | 25 Q And then a whole system is put in place now to

[y Page 80 Page 81
1 make sure, as Dan Jones says, that this never happens | 1 normal. Thatis one logical point in time. Using the

2 again. Is that correct? 2 factual evidence we know that acute subdurals, acute

8 A Let me rephrase that -- 3 subarachnoids you're looking at less than a week or so.

4 Q Well, answer my question, and then rephrase. 4 There was no other markers to say that there was findings

t? 5 were there longer. The laceration to the frenum was

: . “;3‘ (\:fcer:’l;mt I didn't tell you the second half of 6 fresh. We have no other history to suggest, so that also

7 it. So there were also cases of inappropriate diagnoses | 7 is a marker in time that it happened on that evening or

8 of child abuse that led to a lawsuit and separation of | 8 afternoon. e

9 the child from the parent. So the whole idea was let's 2 Q On. page 6 of your report you write, “The

10 get it right. So | am also notified of every reporting ‘ 10 literature is clear that the most cgmmon cause of bosnt

11 of child abuse, and we do a secondary screen, is there a | 11 subdural hematqma. su!?arachno'd hemonhaggs and retina

12 sufficient basis to have reported that. And again, we do | 12 r\ewoﬂhfges in infancy is trauma whether accidental or

13 that within 24 hours of the notification. 13 inflicted.

14 So it swings both ways. But | do think we 44 A Elh'—hUh

15 tryto get it right, and I'm not aware that there's any NG e an e i

- i i ' 16 acceleration/deceleration force; i.e., whiplash motion.

16 overcalling going on. Nationally if you look at ' : i,

17 stalistics on the epidemiology, its aways the opposite 17 D"’A' '°;:_'::h°°" :

18 direction. We just take the person at hand and don'tgo | 1; ol L o W ki v

19 any further. ‘20 my training in the mid-1990s" -- and then you list

‘i?l ot i |21 things. Is that comect?
22 w {22 A Comect. : B g T

23 Q Do youknow when that fatal injury ocoured? 23 M:n i the lterature is clear?

96 A By history it happened after this baby was :; You Say GH

A Youponpfd(upmybwmmkor
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1 pediatric imaging or child abuse specifically, and you il

2 will see that that is the No. 1 etiology of subdural
3 hemorrhages.

It's an amalgamation of textbooks and articies.
Q Ithink you testified earlier that, for ]
example, birth trauma can cause subdural hematoma - |

1
2
3
4 Q Can you give me specifics, please? What 4 hemorrhages. Correct?
5 textbook are you talking about that | can pick up and — ( 5 A Yes. |
6 A [ mean, so - | 8 Q Do you know what the incidence of subidural
7 Q If you want to cite your own work, you can, | | 7 hemorrhages, what that -- what the rate is, what the
8 guess. i 8 incidence rate is?
8 A No, I'm not - so if you look at the body of Q A Depends on what group you're talking about. So
10 literature textbook-wise, Lori Frasier is the editor of 10 the group | think we're interested In, if | can add to
11 Abusive Head Trauma. | think it's in its second edition. | 11 your question, is normal term, asymptomatic infants. And
12 The — gosh, who's the — we use it all the time, and I'm 1 12 the incident rate in that group is close to 30, 40
13 trying to think of the guy's name. You're hitting me { 13 percent,
14 with all these -- | should know the names. He's a |14 Q What causes I'm going to call it SDH in birth,
15 professor of radiology at Harvard, and it's the bible 16 subdural hemorrhages?
16 that we look at in terms of radiologic imaging or neuro 3 16 A So the prevailing theory is that it's a rent in
17 imaging in children. | can get it to you later, but it's | 17 the tentorium, because most of the bleeding of that type |
18 sitting on my desk at the office. | 18 is in the posterior fossa of the brain. So as the head
19 Q Isit, you think, reasonable to rely upon, for ‘ 19 conforms either to the vaginal canal or if there is —
20 example, those two textbooks that you have just testified | 20 particularly if there's forceps or a vacuum that are
21 about? 21 used, there's a lot of forces on the head. And the
22 A | think on that particular issue, yes. | mean, | 22 tentorium is a membrane that separates the upper cerebrum
23 generally speaking there's also many articles and review | 23 from the cerebellum, and the prevailing thought is that
24 articles that look at subdurals that will list or publish | 24 there's forces that causes it to actually injure the
25 some of these same lists. | did not create this list. | 25 blood vessels and bleed into that area.
Rl T & T R L P e Page 84 | : ¥ Page 85
1 The same thing is true in C-sections, so | 1 angular velocity terms are.
2 C-sections aren't immune. Being a pediatrician, that's 2 ou have -- you used the word "severe.” Do
3 the types of deliveries we would go to, and they're not | 3 you have a magnitude at which measurement or unit that
4 as benign as you would think. It's not just cutting the ; 4 acceleration or deceleration is severe?
5 baby out. It does take a lot of force to still get them | 5 «AwNo. | mean, | have no doubt they exist, but |
6 out, particularly since ladies like those small bikini 6 don't even play the numbers game.
7 cuts. Justsaying there's a lot of force even in 7 9@ Can this acceleration/deceleration oceur in a
8 C-sections. 8 fall? Can you have forces in a fall?
9 And | cite the literature in my report. 9 A Yes.
10 And those are the three - there's actually four now, but 10 Q And how far of a fall, if you know, would be a
11 those are the three main studies that look at that. 11 severe fall?
12 w‘lgineer’? 12 A Generally in the literature severe fall is more
13 PN, 13 than two stories. You can talk about all injuries and
14 mu a biomechanic? 14 say 4 feet is about a number that is often cited. And |
15  AWENom 15 put the general survey of all of that literature at the
16 m know what acceleration or deceleration 16 end of my report.
17 forces are? 17 Q Sojust, if you don't mind, what is the basis
18 A Generally speaking, yes. 18 of that opinion that you've just given? What is the
19 Q Do you know the units that they're measured in? | 19 literature that you're relying on?
20 A | probably could think about it. At one point 20 A So Chadwick, David Chadwick who, again, was an
21 I wanted to be a physics major. | read these articles 21 intern of mine at San Diego, has spent his career looking
22 all the time. | would have to think about it to tell 22 at falls and fall studies and how can we put that. His N
«28 you. So, 1 mean, you can either have linear 23 summary - and | can't remember how mény-cmmmpt T
;ranslaﬁonal units or you can have angular translation 24 was an amalgamation of - looked at all the possible ways |

of heights, falls, and correlations wlfh injuries. And i

59 meters per second or | can't remember what the | 25
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believe the common correlator that comes out of that is
that we don't expect any life-threatening injury under
4-foot falls.

Q Would you agree that falls also have a
rotational force?

A Some do.

Q A fall as described in the history by Jeffrey
Havard, would that have a rotational force?

A No.

Q And why not?

A This is a baby who is being held. | mean, so
we've got a man who is five-foot-nine holding an infant
who is reaching for this towel we're talking about inches
before that child - if the child's head even hit the
tank of the toilet. He then is very clear to describe
that he's grasping this child. That's also slowing this
child down. And the child is sliding. And even if the
child fell, we're talking about less than 2-foot fall
onto a carpeted surface. Every day | deal with people
that have much more significant falls, and there's no
significant injuries.

Q And | believe you just testified to this, but
does it matter the surface upon which the child hits?

A To some degree, yes. Overall in this low
thing, no. So most of the studies that we look at that
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~ Page 88
So when we look at old studies like that

where they don't do validation or some other mechanism to
test the veracity of the fall and we're saying the kid
died from a short fall, that's an injustice. That's a
misuse of the literature. -

Q So you're critical of that and their lack of
investigation.

A lam. And so -- | mean, you can pick up any
reputable review article on falls, and they'll be
critical of that study.

Q What do you believe the researcher should have
done to verify the stories?

A Well, first off, you don't publish unverified
things. That's one of the biggest pet peeves we have is
people that will publish what somebody says without any
independent way of verifying it, and that leads to
potential erroneous conclusions. | mean, it litters the
literature. Particularly if our biomechanical engineers
are to apply their research to real world, then you've
got to mimic real-world data. And if that real-world
data is corrupt, then your numbers are going to be
corrupt also.

8o how can you do it? So the proposal of

S o©

12
13
14
15
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19
20
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my mentor was let's use scenarios where we know that kids
fall all the time: daycares, Let's putin cameras.

23
24
|25
|

—
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are witnessed fall studies have linoleum over concrete,

850 you can't get much harder surface than that
Q  Taking everything as equal, would you rather
drop a child on the shag rug or on a toilet, on a
porcelain toilet?
A Obviously the shag rug.
Q Whatis your understanding of the Hall study
that's referenced on page 7 of your report?
A Hall was an attempt to characterize fatal
falls. It was published in 1989 or so. | didn't cite
it. 1 was just merely responding to one of your
pathologists who cited it. It's often cited as evidence
that short falls can kill children. Unfortunately, the
histories were not validated in any of those cases.
In fact, that was the predicate of my
mentor, David Chadwick, for saying, hey, let's do this
study -- and | cite that also in mine -- let's take
everything, let's not do any validation whatsoever on the
history that's given, and let's see what's the incidence
of short-fall deaths. Very interesting, it came up to be
seven times that of a high-fall death, which you can draw
either two logical conclusions: one is that there are
some extraordinary forces in short falls, which | think
no mechanical engineer would ever agree with; or someone
is lying to us.

- 5.5 . "~ Page8g
Let's only publish cases that have the highest fidelity
of knowing what happened.
And I'm not saying we can't consider and

look at and certainly there are cited other cases of a
short fall, but for example, the case where this child is
sitting down and falls backwards dead, there's something
wrong with that case, and we're going to publish that
simply on the word of a five year old. And that was one
of the cases that was also cited by one of your

pathologists to support that short falls kill. That's

one isolated case.

And yet, we look at Chadwick's work that
shows that, | mean, we look at thousands, millions of
falls. And you can even use one of the cases that you
cited of Plunkett, although not totally applicable to the
infant age group, short falls are rare causes of death
when you have a witness structure to it. So that's the
critique of that particular literature. . *

Q And if you were going to submit this literature
in a report, is that what you -
Design a study?
Is that what you would do?
If 1 would design a study?
Yes.

>0>»0X

Well, then you use your criteria to - | mean,
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1 if we want to inform -- and that's what research is 1 analyzed this case in light of - | take histories from
2 supposed to be about, what is the real world - then | 2 all these families. | mean, I've been doing this for 20
3 you're going to design a study that has fidelity on those | 3 something years. | don't understand a man that, as | -
4 things which you have the least control over, and that's : 4 read in these descriptions, who's got an infant who is '
5 the history. How can we do that? Well, if you look at 5 tucked into a swing, why does he respond? | mean, he
6 the history of fall literature, let's put it in context, 6 says in his own statement, "I'm going to leave this baby
7 such as hospitals where there are witnesses that are not | 7 alone for five minutes,” and then does some fairly
8 familial, not related. And there's a whole body of that 8 invasive things that he's never done before and admits to
9 literature which shows that almost no injuries really 9 never having done before.
10 occur, and some of these are very significant falls onto 10 Somehow that child, in my opinion,
11 linoleum over concrete. Use of cameras, again, as away | 11 irritated him, and the injuries occurred. Andthe
12 of doing that to help understand those types of things. 12 injuries are multifocal to the head, the face, the
13 And | think that if you -- and that was 13 anteriorthighs; and the chest. I'typically don't think
14 cited in your case, and | don't disagree. So Case No.5 |14 we see GPR causing bruising to the chest, but Il even
15 in Plunkett was a video of a child falling off of a . |15 allow that one away. Then we have the rectal mucosa.
16 playground, you know, 4, 5 feet, hitting the head, and 16 hematoma. |I'mean, all of this is too much.
17 having a large subdural. No relevance to this case, but |17 Q Any more specific than that?
18 that informs us, that tells us what types of things can 18 A I'm not sure what that means.
19 happen and what we need to be careful about, Believe it | 19 Q Do you know what —
20 or not, we do try to get it right. 20 A Oh, exact -
21 Q - he hit -- yeah, the instrument or —
22 specifically happened to Ghloe Britt? 20 L AR No=
23, A elie she ed. I'dc oW 23 Q - the anything?
24 the s inten hind it. Probz S 24 A -- because the pattern is not there. | mean,
25 experience; there was probably some frustration. As | 25 sometimes we will see — for example, let's say that this
1§ ~ Page92| = Page 93
1 was so severe he hit that toilet lid on the head. 1 BY MR. JICKA:
2 There's no linéar pattern or a corner pattern or anything 2 Q Allright. On page 6 of your report,
3 that | can say, okay, | can match that to that. So all 3 Dr. Benton, you said that the physical findings indicate
4 the bruises did not have a pattern to it. 4 two patterns, one of which is severe
5 MR. JICKA: Are you doing okay? § acceleration/deceleration trauma. Do you see that, that
6 THE WITNESS: I'm fine. 6 you later describe as whiplash motion?
74 MR. JICKA: Okay. I'm not sure | am. | may 17 A Yes.
8 take a break in just a second. 8 Q  With bilateral intracranial findings and
g Are you okay? 9 absence of skull fracture and cerebral contusion.
10 THE REPORTER: (Nods head affirmatively.) 10 A Yes.
11 MR. SMITH: Before we proceed, can we go on the | 11 Q What is the evidence of severe
12 record and just identify everyone who's in the room? | 12 acceleration/deceleration injury?
13 And I'll begin. Brad Smith, Special Assistant 13 A The subdural and the retinal hemorrhages.
14 Attorney General. And? 14 Well, to some degree even the subarachnoid bleeding.
15 MR. WHITE: Marvin White, Special Assistant 15 Q Are you aware of national and international
16 Attorney General. 16 peer-reviewed literature that does not support the
17 MS. IVANOV: Caroline Ivanov, attorney at 17 diagnosis that those are caused by severe acceleration
18 Watkins & Eager. 18 and deceleration?
19 MR. VAN EE: Chris Van Ee, engineer at Design 19 A Tell me who you're referring fo. No.
20 Research Engineering. 20 Q What's the most common cause of traumatic brain
21 MR. CARNER: Graham Carner, attorney for 21 injury in children Chloe's age, if you know?
22 Mr, Havard. 22 A Six months old? Most common?
23 MR. JICKA: And I'm Mark Jicka at Watkins & | 28 Q Most common cause of traumalic brain injury.
24 Eager for Jeffrey Havard. 24 A Traumatic brain injury. Probably motor vehicle
25 MR. SMITH: Good. Thank you. | 25 crash.
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1 Q How about falls, where would they -- 1 prosecution of cases where a child was unroairtlntd.g'
2 A Waydown thelist. Unfortunately, motor 2 A No, nobody to my knowledge has ever prosecuted
3 vehicle crashes probably lead almost every list. We get 3 a parent for an unresirained death or morbidity in a
4 all of them, That's how — | see every unrestrained 4 motor vehicle crash,
5 motor vehicle crash. 5 @ Doyouhave an opinion on whether those parents
6 Q What do you do with those? Are they — 6 should be prosecuted?
7 A We surveil them to make sure that we're not 0 A No, | don't think they should be prosecuted, |
8 missing anything. | hate to tell you, but sometimes | 8 don't know what the answer is there. | mean, to some
9 people do stupid things: They injure their kid, then 9 degree prosecution sets a standard of -- we want to
10 they go get in a crash so they can cover up the injury. |10 believe that by prosecuting someone we're creating a
11 Q Isee. |11 public health benefit, that people might alter their
12 A So we look for other signs that we may have a |12 behavior. | don't really believe that.
13 history that is wrong. 113 @ You've given opinions about your skepticism
14 Q So every car wreck —- | 14 about the history of the fall as described by Jeffrey
15 A Wegetinvolved. |15 Havard. Correct?
16 Q You getinvolved with that comes to UMMC. |16 A Imean, my skepticism is based onthe
7. A We don't get as involved as the ones where they 17 incompatibility of the totality of the findings and what
18 suspect abuse upfront, but we do double-check. We make | 18 - he said happened. That's the basis:
19 sure was there a wreck, was there a crime scene report. | 19 Q  Your opinion is not based on physics or
20 So we call the police and make sure that it was notified. | 20 biomechanics, though. Cofrect?
21 Ifthat's true, then we back off. 21 A No. Well, | mean, indirectly they are, butam.
22 The next thing is unrestrained. As you 22 | using mathematical formulas to arrive at that? No.
23 know, it's an illegal act in the state of Mississippi, |23 @ Youhaven'tapplied the science of physies or
24 although it's a misdemeanor. 24 biomechanics to the Jeffrey Havard case. Correct?
25 Q@ So have you been involved in testifying in the ; 25 A Physics obviously undermines everything = or
i Page% I v N g R e — VP'aga‘Qf
1 y v I i A Correct.
2 mean, that's the purest of the sciences. Well, 2 Q | will learn someday. Of its 2009 position
3 mathematics is, and then physics is based on math. So | i 3 that changed the term shaken baby to abusive head trauma?
4 think that what we're saying is consistent with the |4 A Yes.
5 science of physics, but no, we're not doing measurements | 5 Q Would you agree that that is a substantial
6 or things like that. | 6 change that took place by the AAP?
7  Q Have you visited the scene of this incident? 7 A Itsachange inwords, yes.
8 A | have not. 8 Q Are you aware of a recent Swedish publication
9 Q So you've mentioned Chadwick many times today, | 9 verifying the lack of correlation between the typical
10 and you cite his paper from 2008. And you describe it as | 10 triad and shaking?
11 an excellent meta-analysis of false studies. Is that - | ¥ A | am aware of the Swedish publication, the
12 A I cited two studies by him. So 1991 and 2008, } 12 Swedish study. | would not agree with your conclusion
13 and yes, | do think it's an excellent meta-analysis. |13 that it verifies a lack of a triad.
14 Q Are you aware of the serious statistical 14 Q Have you reviewed that study?
15 criticisms of his conclusions? 15 A Tomyknowledge, that study hasn't been
16 A I have heard that there are criticisms, but | | 16 published in English, but we have disseminated on our
17 have not actually seen them. |17 list a Google translate version of it. There also was a
18 | 18 preliminary publication that just happened in January
19 probabilities? 119 that was in English, and that has been reviewed, yes.
20 A Sure. |20 Q When you say we have disseminated on -
21 Q Couldn't Chloe have suffered a fall in this |21 A Itsthe royal we, but it's the Helfer
22 situation, in this incident? 122 listserv. These are all these individuals that | told
|28 AS¥esy 123 you that we're all vested in looking at children who are
24 Q Are you aware of the AAP 2009 -- I'm going to | 24 suspected of being abused and neglected.
25 get this wrong, the American Academy of Pediatrics? |28 Q Are you aware of multiple court cases whare
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1 judicial action has preciuded the use of the traditional 1 statements nor - suffice it to say, iﬁs’omme is
| 2 triad diagnosis for shaken baby syndrome? Are youmade ' 2 critical of me, then I'm going to chanéa what | write, if |
f 3 aware of court findings throughout the country that have 3 that helps you.
4 occurred recently? 4 Q Do you know the statute number? ‘
5 A | know of no specific court things. | have 5 A No, but I'm pretty -- Mark Ray at our
6 heard that there is a defense that is being promulgated 6 University can cite it for you. That's true of every
7 to both preclude that sort of testimony and use it as 7 place I've ever been.
8 defense if there is an argument that certain findings 8 Q And let me --
9 reflect abuse. 9 A That's the only way to improve the medical
10 Q Do you know what it means for a report to be 10 process.
11 peer reviewed? 1" Q And that's -- because | asked you eariier if
12 A Yes. |12 anybody else had done work on this case, you know -~
13 Q Does anyone review your opinions? For example, | 13 A And | said no.
14 did anyone peer review your opinions for purposes of 114 Q You said no. You said some people had
15 quality of work or your findings in the Jeffrey Havard 15 proofread it.
16 matter? 16 A Correct. No one else provided substantive
1l7¢ A How can | say this? So we have quality review, 17 input into my thoughts.
18 which is not subject to discovery or discussion, and | 18 Q Okay. Butif someone with expert
19 can't answer yes or no with respect to this report or any 19 qualifications had reviewed this report, you're saying
20 other report. |20 you can't tell me about it. E
21 Q There's a secret review of this? 21 A That's correct. I'm saying | take ownership of
22 A Again, under the state statutes, quality review |22 this, and every institution you're ever going to deal
23 is permitted, and it's done without discovery. Andyes, |23 with medically had a peer-review quality assurance
24 there is a quality improvement project. | can'tspeakto |24 process.
25 a specific case, and | won't use it to bolster my |25 Q Who is on - this is a general question. Who
i w " Page 100 Page 101
1 is on the peer review quality of reports at UMMC forthe | 1 board-certified child abuse pediatricians.
2 type of work you do? 2 Q Do you work at an advocacy center?
3 A One of them is the Trauma in Morbidity and |8 A No. | work with them, but | don't work at
4 Mortality Committee, the other one is the General 4 them.
5 Morbidity and Mortality Committee, in addition to which, | 5 Q Which advocacy centers do you work with?
6 because there's no one else that does what | do, we're a | 6 A All of them.
7 party to a collection of individuals from California, 7 Q And will you please give me the list of
8 Tennessee, New York - I'd have to look at the list to | 8 advocacy centers you work with?
9 tell you all the different places. These are coordinated : 9 A So there are 10 currently, 11 forming in the
10 out of New Orleans where they're stripped of all [ 10 state of Mississippi. So going from the north tp the'
11 identifiers and submitted and it's discussed type of | 11 south, we have one in Southaven, | don't recall its exact
12 thing. So that's the external peer review. 12 name; we have one in Lafayette County, that's in Oxford;
13 mmm | 13 we have one in Tupelo; West Point; none in the Delta;
14 review? | 14 Pearl, Mississippi; Natchez; McComb; Meridian; newly
15 Wm ‘ 15 developing in Biloxi, they don't have accreditation yet;
16 saying that any one thing did or did not go through that. \ 16 and Gulfport. Does that add up to ten?
i Q And I'm certainly not trying to fight with you. | 17 Q | didn't count, but it sounds like about tgn.
18 | just want to make sure I'm not missing the right ; 18 What are the — what's the purpose of
19 question. | 19 these advocacy centers?
20 A No, and I'm not trying to mislead you. And | : 20 A So the Children's Advocacy Center was a
21 know what you're after, but | cannot. |21 movement that started out of ﬂuntsﬂl[e, Alabama, by a
22 Q Okay. The external peer review bunch from |22 then U.S. Senator who ‘reqognged fhat tt'\are was not a
23 either New Orleans or California, are they other child ; 23 uniform process in dealing particularly with sexual

25

abuse doctors?
A Yes. Inmy --they're all child abuse - all

|24 abuse. Soit started off with sexual abuse, and it's
125 still mostly dealing with sexual abuse of children. And
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1 this sort of arose out of some gross injustices or 1 Q s part of the ro'lpomlbﬁny of these advocacy

2 perceived injustices ~ we can hash that one later, like 2 centers to assist in the prosecution of child abuse

3 the Martin Preschool trial — and that people who had no . ‘ 3 cases?

4 training were interviewing kids. We weren't recognizing 4 A Since the DA is often involved on the

5 the developmental vulnerabilities of kids, et cetera. | 5 multidisciplinary team, | would say yes. Since law

6 So it started with that Senator who | 6 enforcement is involved, | assume that they have probable

7 created a process is Huntsville and then spread 7 cause that eventually could lead to a criminal action.

8 throughout the country saying that we need to handle 8 CPS, no. The predominant there is to get to youth court

9 child abuse issues in a coordinated or multidisciplinary | 9 and decide protection or custody issues. | can speak for
10 fashion. Mississippi was a little bit later to that 10 mental health and myself, we are not vested one way or
11 movement. You'd have to look at the statutes, butitwas |11 the other where the case goes.
12 putinto the statutes | believe in the early 2000s that 12 Q Do you have any expertise in ophthalmology or
13 all youth court jurisdictions must develop a 13 the examination of eyes?
14 multidisciplinary team approach. 14 A Yes.
15 They decided to adopt the child advocacy 16 Q What is your expertise?
16 model. The first one was in Hinds County, which has 16 A So at Children's Hospital in New Orleans we had
17 subsequently moved to Pearl, but it was in Jackson. And |17 two pediatric ophthalmologists who did -~ they're
18 I'm not sure the order that - | could guess, but | think 18 phenomenal. George Ellis was the president of American

19 the one in Tupelo was second and then Lafayette County. | 19 Academy of Ophthalmology, and they did not have time to
20 And [ know the rest came later because | helped them to |20 see every single kid that we wanted them to see. So |

21 get their accreditation. Sorthe others were before me. 21 asked them to train me in indirect ophthalmoscopy as well |
22 So it is a nongovernmental entity that 22 as | became their photographer.

23 helps to coordinate CPS, law enforcement, prosecution, | 23 So the entire stint in New Orleans | did

24 mental health, pediatrics, with the intent of providing 24 all the ophthalmic photography. And because much like

25 best practices for evaluation. 25 here, we didn't want to just see the ones that we knew or
i Page 104 $ T T 1 Ragevon

1 reasonably suspected had retinal hemorrhages, we wanted | 1 And depending where you are, it takes

2 to see the cases where we weren't sure. Like all falls, 2 certain -- certain layers appear differently. So if

3 we looked at everyone and photographed everyone's retina. | 3 you're in the rod and cone layer, you're going to look

4 They would come behind us and do their exam. But 4 and it looks like dots and blots. It's funny because |

5 photography is tedious. | mean, it can take about an 5 just testified yesterday, that really is the medical term

6 hour or two to get good photographs of a child. 6 forit. | mean, the poor judge, | was giving him so many

7 Q@ Areyou a pediatric ophthalmologist? 7 medical terms, | said here's an easy one: dots and

8 8 blots.

9 %M 9 There's also flame hemorrhages, so these

10 are in the neurofibrillary layer, or in those layers that
11 connect back to the optic nerve. So each different layer

B
-

12 A Bilateral severe multilayered retinal 12 has different thresholds for injury. And then the folds
13 hemorrhages with folds. 13 occur where the attachment is to the vitreous to the

14 Q What does that mean? 14 retina, and it tugs on the retina and it separates the

15 A So the retina is made up of ten layers, and to 15 layers of the retina. And that's because of the strength
16 be simplistic, they are the rods and cones that we see 16 of the vitreous attachment. It's equivalent in the adult
17 with. And then there's the nerve layers that connect 17 world to retina detachment, but we don't -- we typically

18 that back to the optic nerve. The retina is ’ 18 see what's called retinoschisis, not detachment, in young

19 predominantly attached - or the vitreous is 19 infants.

20 predominantly attached to the retina at the optic nerve, [20 @ Howdid the retinal findings affect your
21 which is what comes from the brain to the eye. The 21 opi ? .
22 macula, which is the part of the eye that we see best 22

23 with, which is usually just to the side of the optic 23 And wher: you.!a#kabout
24 nerve, and to the ora serrata, or the front most 24 retina folds, there's - other than Pat Lantz's amtdo
25 attachment of the retina. 25 which showed that crush injuries — or al least one case

J iR _________________'—_——-—-————
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1 in the entire literature crush injuries can also cause { 1 A 1 did write down. So yes, there was a arterial
2 retina folds, we have not really found anything other w 2 blood gas, a CBC, and a basic metabolic panel that |
3 than severe acceleration/deceleration that causes retinal | 3 reviewed and made some notations.
4 folds | 4 Q Okay. What relevance or impact did that have
5 ‘Q Did you review the laboratory tests that were 5 on your opinions in this case?
6 performed on Ghioe in this case? 6 A The arterial blood gas is important because the
7 A Anything that was in the record that was given | 7 first presenting arterial blood gas is a fairly good
8 to me | reviewed, so if that helps. 8 predictor of mortality. So in this case the arterial pH
9 Q@ As we sit here, what did you consider important | 9 was 6.58. Very rare to have anyone survive that presents
10 that you reviewed as it related to laboratory tests? |10 with that pH. And the other subsequent numbers describe
11 A ldon'trecall. |did look at every laboratory 11 that the kid did not have any issues with the lungs being
12 test. If you have something specific in mind, I.can 12 able to ventilate, but obviously had had a period of
13 either re-reference or answer the question. 13 anoxia and acidosis.
14 Q Didyoulook at the slides? Did you look at -~ 14 The complete blood count showed that we're
15 Ariioras 15 looking at the platelets, so that's an indirect indicator
16 ‘Q - anyslides? 16 platelet and coagulation issues were normal. There was a
17 SANG 17 slightly elevated white count at 12. Not too significant
18 @ Have you reviewed any X rays in this case? 18 for a child this age. And a hemoglobin and hematocrit of
19 A My understanding there was only.one X ray, that | 19 10.4 and 29.6, which for a six month old is about right
20 was a chest X ray, and it was described as normal. And | 20 for what we call physiologic nadir, maybe a little bit
21 no, I didn't review it. 21 low.
22 Q And as we sit here -- and | don't mean to beat 22 The basic metabolic panel had multiple
23 adead horse - are you aware of any other lab tests that | 23 electrolyte disturbances, which would be typical for a
24 you reviewed as part of your work in the Chloe Britt 24 child who is being resuscitated.
25 case? And you're welcome to look at your report. 25 Q What is a differential diagnosis, Dr. Benton?
(FER Page 108 Page 109
1 A Itis, | guess, in best terms the different i A So there are a lot of articles. | don't have
2 possible explanations for a given finding. 2 any specific in mind. But so beginning way back in the
3 Q What was your differential diagnosis of what 3 1950s we looked at various mechanical means of causing
4 happened or what was wrong with Chloe? Did you use that | 4 subdurals. Subsequently, there's been looking at various
5 in this case? 5 medical things. And that's how medicine evolves. So the
6 A Well, so we went by finding, and | did list for 6 differential list that | have here is reflective of the
7 you all the possible differential diagnoses for 7 different things that over time have been shown to cause
8 subdurals. You can almost use the exact same list for 8 subdurals.
9 the eye, which is why | didn't make a separate list. Not 9 W
10 quite the same list for subarachnoid hemorrhage. But 10 W
11 generally when we see subarachnoid blood in concert with | 11 A Loaded question there with Dr. Van Eeiin the
12 subdural, we're not dealing with a different pathology. 12 i
13 Q Are you aware of Dr. Hayne conducting any i
14 differential diagnosis of his opinions and work in this oblem is in ge ca
15 case?
16 A Idon't recall.
17 Q Dr. Benton, in doing your work, in doing your
18 differential diagnosis, did you have to rely on some of |18 So when we look at our biomechanical
19 Dr. Hayne's findings from the autopsy or his testimony? | 19 literature now, we're roughly stuck in the same thing
20 A Yes. 20 that I'm critical about certain case reports with the
21 Q Does subdural hematoma require rotational 21 history of people. You, as an atiorney, know histories
22 forces? 22 from people are frequently either inexact or unreliable
23 A Mostly yes, not always. |23 or misinterpreted or flat-out lies. And somewhere all of
24 Q And what is your - do you have a medical 24 that is mixed into our basis in which we come up with
25 reference for that? |25 rules and measurements.
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not sure if they call it Judge Goudge, but it was Siep;?h.
Goudge authorized an inquiry into that pathologist's
practice with specifically looking at those in which a
determination of shaken baby syndrome was one of the
underlying theories of causation.

There was an outcome from that from which
they prescribed I'm not sure if the pathologist lost his
So I'm not dismigsive. We use it, | mean, job, but I think he did, and that as all of us around the
9 and | encourage it. And he's done great work in the past country how can we improve our practice to make sure that
10 that we've looked at. But do | apply that to a specific 10 unscientific things don't enter into a forensic

1 So | think wa're getting better at our
2 approximations. | think that the use of mathematical
3 modeling is still limited in that we're not sure of what

4 thresholds exist. If wa have current models thatsay

@

o
(DWNG‘(J\A(ANA‘

11 case? |think that's where you're going to start to get 11 evaluation.
12 errors, much like if we start to use specific case 12 Q When was that inquiry?
13 reports, like the five month old who dies from a sitting 13 A 2007ish, | believe.

14 position falling backwards. 14 Q You've said that subdural plus retinal

15 @ Are you aware that there are many good 15 hemorrhages plus a history that you believe is not a good
16 sclentists that might find your opinions to be highly 16 explanation is a diagnostic for child abuse. Is that

17 controversial? 17 correct?

18 A Yes. 18 A ldon'tthink |'said that here.

19 @ Are you aware of the -- | may say this wrong, 19 @ Doyouagreewith that?

20 but the Goudge Inquiry in Ontario, Canada? 20 A |think there's a lot more that has to go into

21 A Yes. 21 it, but | think that you are starting to point to an

22 Q What is your understanding of that inquiry? 22 abusive picture if you have noncontact subdural, if you
23 A Soin Ontario they had a problem with a 23 have retinal hemorrhages that are of a specific nature,
24 pathologist that, as far as my understanding goes, had 24 specifically if they have a fold or schisis and | don't

25 some unorthodox ways of conducting his business. And I'm |25 have a history of trauma that fits and, you go down this

B il e " Page 112 Page 113 |
1 differential list, that doesn't have any applicability or 1 the time that it occurred?

2 causation. 2 A Otherthan Dr. Hayne, I'm not aware of anyone
3%
4 there was no board-certified child abuse pediatrician.

5 ever in the state of Mississippi before me.

6 Q Do you have guidelines that you use for

7 investigating infant death?

8 A There are guidelines that exist, so we do use

A | think there are a lot of colleagues in the 9 the sudden unexpected infant death investigation protocol
10 world that | would respect their opinion. As far as for ' | 10 through the Centers for Disease Control. Royal we again.
11 deferred opinion, | think my opinion is just as good, and 11 The state of Mississippi does. So the coroner's office,

12 we could have a good discussion about who knows more or 12 we were able to secure grants that pays them if they do
13 what. They certainly have tools that | don't have, but | 13 it to encourage them fo do it, because that informs us

14 justlike | have tools that they don't have, whether | 14 why infants are dying in the state of Mississippi. So

15 you're talking about magnetic resonance imaging and 15 that's one protocol that I'm aware of. After that or

16 things we can do on living kids that they can't do. And 16 outside of that, I'm not aware of any specific protocols
17 there's certain things you can do to children that have 17 that are followed in the state of Mississippi.

18 deceased that | can't do. So | think we're |18 Q And so that protocol is the CDC-provided

W

19 complementary, but I think we should be each 19 protocol. Is that correct?

20 knowledgeable in the other's practice if that's the job | 20 A Yes, sir.

21 that we're in. 21 Q And when did that protocol come into effect?
22 Q Aspartofyourjob — well, le's make it 22 A God,|usedtotrainonit. Probably late
|23 DWW 23 '90s, early 2000s, so somewhere around that. It's

24 dmmmm 24 constantly being modified. i
W | 26 Q That was my next question Do you recall when
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| ; Wa;"‘e V\'/ZS:‘:;"" ;‘ "f'as modified? i 1 that's how it started. Ifs subsequently evolved where
5 R : raining where | was trained maybe 2 anytime (hqre was .bie'eding in the head, subdural or
4 tota;l » maybe as much as four years age. So they ‘ 3 subarachnoid, anq |psxﬁatera|‘ or same side, bleeding,
g :, revised the form. So they constantly look at the | 4 that people would call it Terson syndrome. It's not
; Z,Ur:: lons' that sre on there.' You're talking to the 5 technically really a syndrome. These were just
y of a dead infant that just died. It's fresh. So 6 observations. And as far as its applicability to
| 7 there's been many meta-analysis and statistical analysis, 7 children, it's questionable.
8 which questions are the most important to ask without 8 Q Did Chloe have cerebral edema?
| 9 being tedious. So the question and how the questions are | 9 A | didn't capture it if she did. And she may
10 asked have changed over time. | don't recall the exact | 10 have died too fast to develop cerebral edema is my
11 lasttime, though. But my recollections are around , 11 thoughts. So it's not in the autopsy report, and for
12 three, four years ago. 12 that reason | would say no, | don't think she did.
13 Q Did you note some bruises on the inside of i) Q Did you find any evidence of fractures to
14 Chloe's scalp? |14 Chloe's bones?
15 A Dr. Hayne did, yes. 15 A There were no skull fractures. Thatis
16 Q Do you know how she got those bruises? 16 specifically mentioned.
17 A ldonot [ 17 Q Any other fractures?
18 Q Did you examine the subdural blood? |18
18 A Ididnot. 119
20 Q What is Terson's syndrome? ‘ 20 sought with respect to the autopsy report. Except for
21 A Terson syndrome was first described by a French | 21 the skull, | mean, the skull is visible once you remove
| 22 ophthalmologist. He made an observation note that in his : 22 the scalp. But I'm not aware of any other X rays that
23 adult stroke patients where they had subarachnoid | 23 looked for any.
24 bleeding that he would notice ipsilateral, or same side, | 24
25 to the stroke hemorrhaging into the back of the eye. And | 25 did that report?
e i . 5 Page 116
1 A So the Sweds, much like we do, have — i 1 very limited one. It says that you can't use the triad
2 America we have an Institute of Medicine, which is a 2 of retinal hemorrhages, subdural, and cerebral or
3 collection of some of our best scientists that sit and 3
4 try to decide where we're going to go with researchand | 4 Q Do you agree with that?
5 things like that. So the Swedish equivalent of that was 5 A Yeah. | don't think anyone ever said that
6 charged with this particular question, and that's who 6 simply using those three findings equals abuse. | mean,
7 developed the report. 7 | already gave you a full list of other reasons why those
8 Q What is your understanding just in a broad 8 findings could be something else.
9 sense of what's included in that report? 9 Q So you don't have any criticism of the
10 A So it was a literature review. It was not 110 conclusions of the Swedish report that came out.
11 actually a study. So it reviewed | believe - it's 1 A Oh, no, we do have - | -
12 almost comical to say this, but it reviewed 3,000 studies 12 Q What are they?
13 and dismissed all but two. And that's one of the major 13 A --royal we. So the conclusion is more than
14 critiques of it is that it's methodologically unsound. |14 that. So this has — as you are aware in the fact that
|15 As we speak, there is a secondary review. |15 you're even asking me about this, this has gotten
16 So they were asked to present all their data before | 16
17 publication, because we knew it was coming. And they | 17 much as any other of forming a basis.
118 refused. In fact, | asked Brad Smith to request that in 1§ ‘Now, what you probably don't know, or
| 19 an official capacity because | couldn't get it, and he 19 maybe you do know, is that the former director of the
20 got a letter denying that they were going to give itto 20
21 him, so that we could provide it to our own scientists to 21 for, but whatever those initiais stand for, his son was
22 soe what that meant, So that's my understanding of that 22 accused in California of shaking his child to death, and
{23 review. 23 he spent a good, considerable effort trying to assist his
{24 Q Whatwas the conclusion? 24  son, as any good parent would do. And ifs our
25 A Whichis interesting. So the conclusion is a 125

L

Pages 114.117

age 11

A There's no mention of any other fractures, but
| also didn't see any evidence that other fractures were

Q The Swedish report that came out in 2016, who

Page 117

encephalopathy to conciude that a child had been abused.

international prominence, much as the Goudge Inquiry did,

Swedish equivalent - | can't remember what SDU stands

undmmmmmafsﬂ\ebwofﬂ'Bmmfw
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Page 119

{ 1 pushing for thig, to come to sort of a conclusion that 1 just a second to look at that.
2 this Is as unscientific, it lacks ldn't
3 usedto deﬁ:e ::il’tfjcat:u:e ks_f:;’:‘::\:‘::;:ﬂz’;: irith ‘ ; going to a'::yzé % 10‘ s IO A
4 and so does the rest of my colleagues { | 4 'm?_ YOb Questions on the boftom of e MW
1 ; Wwith - you can look at the question on 18, but going
5 Q  You would agree with me that this Swedish | 5 from 415, 18 through the top of 416,
6 version of the SDU is not a fringe group. Correct? 6 A Yes, sir.
Z A |agree. . ‘ (é Q This is the direct examination of Dr. Dar. Do
8 Q The - | 8 you know who Dr. Dar is?
) A Butthe = 9 A If I'm not mistaken, that was the baby's
10 Q -~ what is your - ‘ 10 primary care physician. | mean --
11 A - I'msorry, I'm going to add to that. | 11 Q Sure -
12 Q Yeah. [ 12 A - do you agree or — <
13 A The Swedish Pediatric Society has_ roundly {18 Q  --yeah, no, I'm not trying to POp quiz you.
14 condemned what has gone on as being tainted, as not being | 14 Mw
15 open, as not being part of the scientific process that 15 answer. There were three physicians in the emergency.
16 we're used to, which suggests why. And | think you're 16 room. Dr. Dar was the primary care physician of that ‘
17 going to hear more about this in the next ensuing months. 17 child.
18 So it becomes to' take on a fringe when there's not an 18 Q The question was asked, "Why don't you tell us
18 openness to the inquiry. | 19 what you observed about the baby.” You see that on 4157
20 MR. SMITH: Do you need a break? | 20 A Yes, sir.
21 THE WITNESS: I'm good. 21 Q Anditsays, "Baby was being intubated.” What
22 (Exhibit 5 marked) ‘ 22 does that mean?
23 BY MR. JICKA: |23 A It's not very specific, but in my
24 Q Allright. Dr. Benton, let me hand you | 24 understanding, they're putting a tube into the airway.
25 Exhibit 5, and I've given a copy to Brad. Il give you |25 Q Was—
i v ol e Page 120 R, P L Page"{'zT{
1 A You can intubate many things, but it's usually { 1 MR. JICKA: All right. Why don't we go off the
2 the airway they're referring to. ’ 2 record, and | will organize and try to complete your
3 Q "Was blue around the mouth. Pupils were fixed. | 3 deposition. Okay, sir? Thank you.
4 So I walk onto her...side first, and so | had this luxury 4 (OFF THE RECORD 4:22 p.m.)
5 of being able to look in her eyes because the rest was |5 (ON THE RECORD 4:40 p.m.)
6 being done, and | said - pupils were fixed which | 6 BY MR. JICKA:
7 means -- which is a sign of brain dead." Do you agree, 7 Q Dr. Benton, | have just a few more questions
8 Dr. Benton, that fixed pupils is a sign of being brain 8 for you, sir.
9 dead? g When you said that you had spoken with
10 A It certainly goes along with brain death, but 10 Dr. Steven Hayne over a period of time, have you
11 we don't use it as a criteria for brain death. 11 discussed with Steven Hayne the Jeffrey Havard case?
12  Q Going on it says, "Pupils were fixed and 12 A No, sir.
13 dilated. So I look through her pupils and | see 13 Q When you said that you reviewed the transcript
14 hemorrhages in her retina which means — which is so very | 14 of Jeffrey Havard regarding the history of the fall, what
15 specific of this kind of injury.” Did | read that |15 transcript are you talking about? ;
16 correctly? ‘ 16 A My memory -- and perhaps it's not a transcript,
17 A Yes 117 but there are direct quotes, | thought it was a
1 A " | 18 transcript, of his description of what happened. And |
19 that?” "Being a shaken baby. Refinal hemorrhages. |19 thought it was a custodial interrogation.
20 W |20 Q It's not on the stuff that you gave us, and |
21 hemorrhages are only caused by shaking? 121 didn't know  that we could find.
25 T 22 A Everything | have on that disk is all that |
23 Q Would you disagree with this testimony from 23 had, so it's somewhere in there.
'Dr.Dar? |24 Q Allright.
2‘; A l35 A And ?m pulling those direct quotes. | might '

: 844.533.DEPO
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Pages 122 125

1 be able t (S RL Y G i
2 dont havcot:ﬁ:(::,hfm my handwritten notes, which | ; :‘f:;::r’:;ng. do you now remember the name of It by
3 |
. 2 “"""':’h:;':‘i t 3 A No,butlcangetthatto Fouhties i
5 o A thihe o r:OB was. ; 4 Q If you will do that for me, get that to Brad —
% thtes ext question: Where are those i : : tA Or if you'd like, | can look it up on my
| aptop.
; g ng:;om:la.you h 38 . Sgrs. abs'olutely. Whatever you want to do to
ce those notes to us? | 8 short-circuit, that's great.
9 A Unh-unh, |9 A PaulKleiman, that's the aditor, professor of
10 Q  Answer out loud for me, please. 10 radiology at Harvard.
11 A No, sir. {11 Now for the title of the book. One
12 Q I mean, | totally get the gist, but | want it 12 second.
13 to show in the record. 13 Q Sure. Did you say Kleiman?
14 A Yes, sir. 14 A Paul Kleiman, K-L-E-I-M-A-N.
15 Q Why not? 15 Shoot, | don't have the Internet. I've
16 A I mean, they're my work product. They're not 16 got to turn on my phone.
17 organized. They are meaningful to me but probably 17 THE WITNESS: Do you have Internet?
18 wouldn't be meaningful or misinterpreted perhaps by you | 18 MR. SMITH: Uh-huh.
19 or others. 19 THE WITNESS: Just do Paul Kleiman, radiology
20 Q And | understand your position. Will youdo me |20 textbook, and it should come up.
21 the favor of securing those in case a court does order at | 21 A Diagnostic Imaging of Child Abuse is the title,

N
N

some paint that they be produced? 22 third edition.

23 A Sure. 23 BY MR. JICKA:
24 Q Don't shred them or burn them or lose them. 24 Q Thank you. | see on the information you
25 The textbook on your desk that you were 25 brought — and I'll turn Graham's computer around so you
i ) ] . Page 124 | Page 125
1 can see it - is a letter from Brad where he's producing 1 If you assume that Jeffrey Havard had
2 two DVRs to you, and looks like each of the DVRs are the | 2 Chloe about shoulder height at the time that he dropped
3 same. Is that right? They were identical? 3 her and that the first — that as she fell the first hit
4 A | didn't check them. | mean, that goes to our 4 that she made was onto the toilet and then a second
5§ coordinator. | presume they were identical. 5 strike on the floor, if you look at your findings here in
6 Q Who's your coordinator? 6 the types of injuries, which of those would be consistent
4 A Amanda Sanford and Candace -- why am | having | 7 with that assumption or scenario?
8 trouble with last names today? That's terrible. | 8 A Well, | mean, he describes definitely that the
9 Q Poor Candace. | 9 leg hit the lid of the toilet first, so none of these fit
10 A Poor Candace, yes. | can't think of her last | 10 the leg. Not saying that the leg didn't hit the toilet,
11 name. |11 saying it's just that there's no injury here that
12 Q The information that was on each of these DVRs, | 12 reflects that. He said that it's possible - actually,
13 did you download that onto this jump drive? 113 he said the torso hit the tank and possibly the head hit,
|14 A No. So the process at the University is we 14 so | would give you, take your pick, one lmpact.tomg
15 have our own secure server. My coordinator would take | 115 head on the tank possible.
16 that, upload it, file my file to the server, which locks |16 And then as far as the floor goes, he
17 when itis and locks it down. It's our safe way of 17 couldn't describe that the head hit the floor at all. So
18 storing things and documenting. |18 it's possible other parts fell and then the kid slumped
119 Q Where are the disks that -- or the DVRs that - 19 over. So let's take worst-case scenario, the head did
{20 A Destroyed. We don't keep paper. We don't keep | 20 nnm@mdwm”mwmmmng_
|21 disks. We store it on the server. |21 attribute it to that. Q‘h"m”“‘ | can't
22 Q Ifyoulilook, do you still have Exhibit 27 122 mmwwmmwmmm‘thanw
23 Flip to your report, the report part of that Exhibit 2, 123 kinematics to look at.

24 please. On page 5 looking at your chart, | had acouple 24 Q Tmmmmmwowmmq\y
of follow-up questions. 25 Ww«mwumwwe»m
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; [he:\ cazge out of Dr. Hayne's autopsy. Is that correct? | 1 Q Occiput or nasal bridge, could sem'ent;:lym}- :
orrect. | 2 A Not nasal bridge but occiput, yes. | mean, |
3 Q That's not a term, though, that you use in ‘; 3 see your point, but | don't have an answer. | mean, it
4 your -- or is it a term that you use in doing your - 4 reads as if it's a separate part. H 3
5 e ot 5 MR. JICKA: Allright. Thank you for your |
6 Q - differential diagnosis? | 6 patience with me today. | really appreciate it, and
7 A - but | will specify where on the head that 7 that's all the questions | have now.
8 it's multifocal. So he -- the phrase was multifocal 8 MR. SMITH: No questions.
9 scalp hematomas. | think it's important, that's why | 9 (Deposition concluded at 4:48 p.m.) 2
10 put it there, but | put it in quotes because in terms of 10
11 pattern he doesn't give me enough to say more than that. | 11
12 Q And [ guess my question is: Is this an 12
13 additional finding or injury to, for example, the bruises k)
14 above where -- 14
15 A Yes. He makes a separate notation of it, and 15
16 he specifically mentions scalp hematoma. So, | mean, | |16
17 guess that's a question you can ask him, but | 17
18 interpreted it as a separate finding. 18
19 Q Okay. The scalp, what would you consider the 19
20 scalp, what part of the body? 20
21 A I know it's a six month old, but generally the 21
22 area under the hair. 22
23 Q Would the forehead -- could the forehead be 28
24 part of the scalp? 124
LZS A Could be. 25
= Page 128 Page 129
1 CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER 1 CERTIFICATE OF DEPONENT
2 2 ’
3 I, LORI P. GALLASPY, Registered Professional 3 I, SCOTT A. BENTON, M.D., do hereby certify i
4  Reporter and Notary Public in and for the State of 4 that the foregoing deposition transcript is true and
5 Mississippi, do hereby certify that the above and 5 accurate to the best of my knowledge and belief, as
6 foregoing pages contain a full, true, and correct 6 originally transcribed or with the changes as noted
7  transcript of the deposition of SCOTT A. BENTON, B L e el SR
8 M.D., taken in the aforenamed case at the time and g
9 place indicated, which proceedings were recorded by 2
10 me to the best of my skill and ability. SCOTT. 2. SHENTON| 3¢, D2
o I also certify that I placed the witness under 2
12 oath to tell the truth and that all answers were I; D ST e e L
13 given under that ocath. 13 day of , 2017,
14 T also certify that I have no interest, e
15 monetary or otherwise, in the outcome of this case. i
16 This the 22nd day of March, 2017. Notary Public &
Ty
My Commission Expires:
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STIPULATION 1 (Exhibits 1, 2, and 3 marked)
It is hereby stipulated and agreed by and 2 SCOTT A. BENTON, M.D.,
between the parties hereto, through their respective 3 having first been duly swoirn, testified as follows:
attorneys of record, that this deposition may be taken at | 4 EXAMINATION
the time and place hereinbefore set forth, by LORI P. 5 BY MR. JICKA:
GALLASPY, RPR, CSR, Court Reporter and Notary Public, 6 Q Dr. Benton, my name is Mark Jicka, and |
pursuant to the Mississippi Rules of Civil Procedure, as 7 rapresent Jeffrey Havard. I've gotssomekquesﬁons for
amendedy 8 you today because you were designated as an expert
That the formality of READING AND SIGNING is 9 witness in his case. Do you understand that? :
specifically RESERVED; 10 A Thatyou have some questions? Yes.
That all objections, except as to the form of il Q Anddo you understand you were designated asan
the questions and the responsiveness of the answers, are 12 expen?
reserved until such time as this deposition, or any part 13 A  Yes. ’
thereof, may be used or is sought to be used in evidence. |14 Q Okay. How often have you been designated as an ‘
15 expert for the State of Mississippi?
R 16 A Every case that I've ever been involved in
17 since 1997 when the federal rules changed is delineated :
18 on my CV, and I don't know the exact number but several |
19 hundred. : y.
20 Q And when was the last time that you testified s
21 for the State of Mississippi?
22 A Yesterday. :
23 Q Andwould that be found on the list that you e
| 24 had provided us ~ P
g i
A No.
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JEFFREY HAVARD V. STATE OF MISSISSIPPY = M
Scott A. Benton, M.D. - 03/09/2017 % u‘
[ 1 Q —in this case? lmgomgmieiywma 1 A mmdmm
2 Exhibit 2, which is the Notice of Service of Respondent's 2 mbmasmwmsqdwm
| 8 Designation of Experts with that list, and i you couid 3 Q The Ragin' Cajuns? ‘
| 4 updateutformenfyoucanrbmemberhemesym‘ve?ad 4 A Thatsit
| 5 since you provided this to us, please. 5 Q mmmmwnmmm
{ 8 A Iprobably could easier call my office and have 6 A LSU School of Medicine in New Orieans. ; 3=
| 7 them printit. These are all maintained by the 7 Q Mﬁmmgiﬁﬂsﬁ*w
| 8 University. Sothe case yesterday was State versus 8 A ]
| 8 Jaquarius Johnson, and that was Hinds County Circut ) Q wmmmaiauemm
| 10 Court. The case on Tuesday was in the inferest of —I'm 40 A W&de@ﬁeﬂ
{11 not sure | can say the name publically, but s G A 11 Orieans. and & was through Charty Hospital, University
1512 Q Where was that? 12 Hospital, and Children’s Hospital.
{13 A Thatwas in Copiah County. 13 Q Andhow about a fellowship afier your
{14 Q Was that chancery court or — 14 residency? :
|15 A That was youth court. 15 A No. A
%16 I can't — my phone is off, and | cant 16 Q Are you board cerfified? 5
| 17 access my business calendar from here. So like | said, 7 A Yes 5
| 18 we can always reprint an updated CV. '8 Q Andwhatare you board certified in, sir? 2
19 Q  If you don't mind, if you'll send it 1o Brad. 12 A In general pediatrics and child abuse
120 We'll give you a little list of homework to do # he 20 pediainics.
‘21 approves, and send that to us so we can update & 21 Q What is the body that certifies you in general /
|22 please. 22 pediaics? ’
{23 A Okay 23 A Bofh of them are the American Board of .
|24 Q Thank you. 24 Pediatrics. ‘ ;
25 Dr. Benton, where did you go to college? 25 Q Nemh&wihmo@amzﬁmlﬁeﬁme
L E
| 1 its AAP? i 1 mwgmmaﬁlmu Y
|2 A American Academy of Pediarics. 2 352 resident. aithough the check actually came from
3 Q Are you a member of the AAP? 3 MWWM'M .
be 05 I am, I'm a full fellow. 4 employed there untl 2008. 'm‘jmm :
[5 Q@ Andwhatis the American Academy of Pediatics? 5 shudent, resident and professor. E
iG A It's an organization of pediatricians in g€ aQ mmmmmq&m o b
; it ision devotediothe 7 A Atthe University of Mississippi, . :
7 America, the largest pediatric association
: 8 Q@ Asdwhatis your cumrent position m
8 health care of children. i o I s & i dw W y
| 9 .Q_ ::\nd.youg:rreuﬂymlk nuersiy 10 Q Doyou hoid any other posiions at UMMC?
10 Mississippi Medical Center. Is that comect? Sy ) :
: 11 A Tmchiefofthe
11 A Thats comect. o PR B~
12 Q How long have you worked for them. s¥? i P
13 A Nine years. Ahloslmn:m s B?:?IQ&Q ;
14  Q And before that where did you work? b w ',”; 3 i
15 A AtLSU School of Medicine in New Orleans and 5 5 ﬁﬁm :
16 Children's Hospital of New Orleans. %
17 Q N‘dﬁmwﬂﬂmmuﬁ.‘ " k
18 in a different capacity?
19 A Both. y
20 WO wmm@mm e
121 A Ineverleft the system. From —
22 Q Youshould getout some.
{23 A Solworked WW‘!‘
24 a:mmswmmaﬁ
25 w»mmmf
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" Mv your entire flie? . 1
< A (Thumb drive presented to Mr J!uh) X 2
{9 O R AR rmgonnq\omm-h 3is
14 Exhibit 4, 4
E MR. WHITE: mpywhm- that first X
|8 exhibit for us? W ; £ :
oy MR. JICKA: Yes, yes 7
|8 MR WHITE: Thank you. L18 .y My
o MR. JIOKA: I 1 forget, Brad, Sonny, y'all let PV
7:‘3 :::::w Pwom-mwmam 198 A tmmdl}vﬂ*m"l'
1 o, 11 interested in reviewing the mﬁ;ﬁ‘m‘
|12 Let's go off the record for a second. 12 that new science was exculpatory to the original ca
13 {OFF THE RECORD 143 p.m) 13 Q And the contract that you have with the S
|14 (ON THE RECORD 143 pm) 14 of Mississippi, are you paid an hour
115 BYMR. JICKA: (16 A Aetuﬂ‘; Kf‘bv o
% Q Soyouw-rmu-umamw s that ‘18 mnwago:;mﬁm
17 cormect, Dr. Benton? w0 mwmmvw :
18 A Yes,sir e MR JICKA: All right. So I'm (o
19 Q mdmmmwmw 19 MR WHITE: And you said the 1""“.
| 20 that jump drive, please, sir. 20  jumpdriveisd? g .
21 A Althe files received from the Attormey 21 MR JICKA: Yes, mmﬂﬂﬁ*”z
22 General's office, the notice of deposition, al ofthe 22 stick it inthere.
23 trial record - well, | guess everylhing that was gven 23 mqw i \,

|24 by the Attorney Generaf's office, some pholographs of the 24 BY MR JICKA:
25 bathroom incident scene, my report is on there, alithe 25 Q vmmmmmmuuwm

Tt SR i P R W W

{1 moocsmw {1 mp%mm

2 A Tothe University. | 2 Victims of Crime Act lbm\(bdgm

'3 Q Anddoyou receive a salary from the | 3 victims ~ let's see, Violence W
4 University? : |4 and | believe that's — mmw g
& A ldo 5 grants. Grants from Sam's, Walmart, m .
6 Q Isyour salary dependent on the additional work |8 Q whwwammmwn .

' do for the State of Mississippi? 7 receive? R e
[;M‘AMNG = ‘ v-'M A lmumhmd#w“m; 1 i
9 Q The salary that you receive, is there any. ‘9 mm@rﬂmamm-m..ww.

10 funding that comes from outside sources other thanthe | 10 Q And do you have to apply for ¥

11 State of Mississippi? ~1”‘ :nnuﬂyordnmyjullmm 4

12 change?
1 A Somsmndhqbrhwmmtbuqdoﬂd nge’
¥abg!dammmaw,mmn¢nwmwmmmln Us A wgu,w...n
|14 the budget, the State budget. quummm : M mylicgmurum
|18 sowumqwam'tds.ﬁorpamuﬂhmu”&mw LA 'ﬁ
16 thair third-party payers. w.‘wm\‘ubﬁgd- Lo S
17 ewmmwymwzwdlmw |
15 awoﬁmohm
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| A In my division it's Rebecca Mansell,

[ 2 Q How much is the VOCA grant?

3 A I'm going to kind of know off the top of the |
4 head. | think it's $28,000. '

i
2
3
4
5 Q That's 28,000 a year? | 5

tell her hello from an old friend. Okay?

A About seven years or so.
Q  When we go off the record, Il tell you to

A Okay. ke i B
Q  Before your request by the State of Mississippi )

6 A It's only been awarded once, so we hope to get 6 to getinvolved in the Jeffrey Havard case, had you heard
7 it again. 7 of this case? 4
8 Q The Violence Against Women grant -- | 8 A Yes.
9 A I don't know the numbers on that. That one 9 Q Tell me what you had heard about the case ﬂﬂOY'
10 just - the 28,000 just came through, that's how | know |10 to being contacted by the Attorney General's office. # 4
11 thatone. 11 A The previous person who was in Rebecca
12 Q Whatis your involvement, say, with Rebecca in 12 Mansell's place was Elizabeth Hocker. And when | first
13 applying for these grants? Do you provide information? 13 moved here in the summer of 2008, no one had heard of me,
14 Do you help fill out the paperwork? Just tell me about 14 and we were not generating very much revenue. And tﬁey
15 your involvement, please. 15 were paying a salary to me, and Ms. Hocker thought it
16 A I'm her boss, so as far as the division goes, 16 would be good if | offered my services to various people.
17 As far as the University is concerned, I'm respansible 17 So Jerry Mitchell, a reporter with The :
18 for her actions, so | have to sign all the grants as we 18 Clarion-Ledger, had written a very inflammatory article
19 are going to comply with whatever the contract says, 19 about this case suggesting that an injustice had
20 although we have a Grants Department that's over my head | 20 occurred, and the material m'aner was things that | deal ;
21 tomake sure | am in compliance with all of that. But 21 with all the time. And she suggested that we offer our
22 that's - she writes all the grants. She seeks them out. 22 services if, indeed, an injustice had occurred. And so |
23 That's what she was hired - one of the many things she 23 had initially reached out to Jerry Mitchell and without 4
24 was hired to do. 24 any response, and then ultimately he did respond to T
25 Q How long has Rebecca worked in your division? 25 He offered what materials | guess was in the public s
¥ . E Page 16 “Page 171
1 record available for my review, and | gave him my opinion | 1 so that subpart of the program of the Division of il
2 of those records. 2 Forensic Medicine. The division didn't exist until |
3 Q Okay. About what time frame was this? 3 came. i I
4 A This is latter half of 2008. 4 Q Other than Jeffrey Havard's case, have you been
5 Q Soright after you started the job here at 5 involved in other cases where Ms. Hocker or Ms. Mansell | .
6 UMMC. 6 have asked you to take a look at cases that are in the
7 A Uh-huh. | 7 public eye to see what your response would be? "
8 Q And if you'll answer yes or no for me, please, | 8 A No, this was the fu:st and only to my
9 sir 9 knowledge. ,
10 A My apologies. 10 Q Tell me what youdid. Soyou tfawmd the
11 Q That's okay. 11 information, and then tell me basically what you did L
12 A Yes. 12 it related to the Jeffrey Havaré case. J 5
13 Q So | just want to make sure | understand this. 13 A ldid not--this was not formal. There was no :
14 So why did Ms. Hocker present this information toyou? | 14 contract or money rabﬁonsﬁip l~mvl?m§° the 7"
15 What is your understanding? |15 materials. | did not see the injustice that Jery
16 A Well, she was the director, much as Rebeccais | 16 Mitchell mentioned. | replied to that, and that's it :
17 the director, and directors look for ways of continuing a ! 17 Never saw or heard kom ty,m again. i h t ‘
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